[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

WOEVCEC%L:'{’;}PLTON Vibrant and
Sustainable City
Scrutiny Panel

21 March 2018

Time 6.00 pm Public Meeting? YES Type of meeting Scrutiny

Venue Training Room, Ground Floor - Civic Centre

Membership

Chair Clir lan Angus (Lab)
Vice-chair Clir Christopher Haynes (Con)

Labour Conservative

Clir Mary Bateman Clir Arun Photay
Clir Philip Bateman MBE

Clir Greg Brackenridge

Clir Val Evans

Clir Bhupinder Gakhal

Clir Keith Inston

Clir John Rowley

Clir Caroline Siarkiewicz

Clir Mak Singh

Quorum for this meeting is four Councillors.

Information for the Public

If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the Democratic Services team:

Contact Martin Stevens
Tel/Email martin.stevens@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Address Democratic Services, Civic Centre, 15t floor, St Peter’'s Square,

Wolverhampton WV1 1RL

Copies of other agendas and reports are available from:

Website http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/
Email democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Tel 01902 555046

Some items are discussed in private because of their confidential or commercial nature. These reports
are not available to the public.

If you are reading these papers on an electronic device you have saved the Council £11.33 and
helped reduce the Council’s carbon footprint.



http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/
http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda

Part 1 — items open to the press and public
Item No. Title

MEETING BUSINESS ITEMS

1 Apologies
2 Declarations of interest
3 Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 8)

[To approve the minutes of the previous meeting as a correct record]

4 Matters arising
[To consider any matter arising from the minutes]

DISCUSSION ITEMS

5 Parking Outside Schools Scrutiny Review (Pages 9 - 30)

Scrutiny Officer, Earl Piggott-Smith will present a report from the Parking Outside

Schools Scrutiny Review.

6 Dog Control in Wolverhampton (Pages 31 - 104)

Shaun Walker, Service Lead, will present a briefing note on Dog Control in

Wolverhampton.

7 Future Work Plan (Pages 105 - 112)

[For the Scrutiny Panel to discuss ideas for the future work plan of the panel].

Agenda
Page 2 of 2



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

CITY oF H .
wovirnameron  Vibrant and Sustainable

counciL City Scrutiny Pan&l* """

Minutes - 23 November 2017

Attendance
Members of the Vibrant and Sustainable City Scrutiny Panel

Clir lan Angus (Chair)
Clir Mary Bateman

Clir Philip Bateman MBE
Clir Greg Brackenridge
Clir Val Evans

Clir Bhupinder Gakhal
Clir Keith Inston

Clir Arun Photay

Clir Caroline Siarkiewicz

In Attendance
Clir Steve Evans (Cabinet Member — City Environment)

Employees

Martin Stevens (Scrutiny Officer) (Minutes)
Tim Pritchard (Head of Corporate Landlord)
Helen McGourlay (Finance Business Partner)
Gwyn James (Head of Strategic
Transportation)

Steve Woodward (Head of Environmental
Services)

Part 1 — items open to the press and public

Item No. Title

1 Apologies
Apologies for absence were received from Clir John Rowley, Clir Mak Singh and Clir
Christopher Haynes.

2 Declarations of interest

There were no declarations of interest.

3 Minutes of the previous meeting

The minutes of the previous meeting held on 28 September 2017 were approved as

a correct record.

4 Matters arising

Page 3

Minutes



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

The Chairman reported that the issue of parking near schools had been looked at in
depth at the last meeting and it was clear legislative changes were needed. It had
been agreed that three or four Councillors would form a sub-group to work through
the recommendations. On the 13 November a document had been emailed to the
Panel Members for their consideration and comment. The Scrutiny Officer, Earl
Piggot-Smith, had requested that any comments should be emailed to him by the
end of the following week. There were eighteen recommendations, the majority of
which the Chair believed were practicable and achievable.

Draft Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018-19 to 2019-20

The Finance Business Partner (Place) presented a report on the Draft Budget and
Medium Term Financial Strategy 2018-2019 to 2019-2020. The purpose of the
report was to seek the Panel’s feedback on the Draft Budget 2018-2019, that had
been approved by Cabinet to proceed to formal consultation and scrutiny stages.
The Panel’s feedback was also sought on the approach to the budget consultation
and key budget reduction proposals that were built into the Council’s Medium Term
Financial Strategy. There were no new savings currently proposed in the service
area for the forthcoming financial year.

The Cabinet Member for City Environment stated there were three main strands in
the savings portfolio over three financial years. Corporate Landlord had a target of
£1.2 million savings. The Council was on track to achieve the £1.2 million in savings.
Whilst there had been overspend in some areas there had also been underspend in
others. There were some issues in Catering Services but overall the Council was on
target. Over the next two financial years there was a target of a further £2 million in
savings. He personally believed the City was moving, office space and buildings
were having a much better take up. i10 had been a success in helping to attract
other businesses to the City.

The Chair requested further information on the overspend in catering services. In
response, the Head of Corporate Landlord stated there had been a £590,000
reduction in the Catering Services income. The service was however still bringing in
£900,000 in income, so it was not a net loss to the service. The principal reason for
the reduction in income was the market becoming more competitive. The current
offer to schools was higher in costs compared to the market but extra services were
included in the overall cost. The Council would therefore have to offer these extra
services for an additional charge to remain competitive. An action plan was being
devised reprofiling the service, with a report due in the near future. The review that
had been completed was partly to help manage a decline in the service as schools
became more autonomous. In excess of 70% of primary schools were still using the
Council’s catering service. A review had been undertaken with the intention of
helping to stabilise the service. A panel member asked what had caused the decline
and was keen to ensure that nutritional standards remained high. In response, the
Head of Corporate Landlord confirmed that the Council was currently charging more
per school meal than the market. The food however was provided to a higher
standard and a kitchen maintenance and food advisory service were provided as part
of the package. In future, the Council would have to provide a price for a food only
service, to remain competitive and offer the additional services as extras with a

Page 4

Minutes



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

corresponding additional charge. The Panel noted the good work undertaken in
Corporate Landlord in achieving the savings to date.

A panel member asked if the Civic Hall fell within the remit of the Head of Corporate
Landlord. In response, the Head of Corporate Landlord stated that the Civic Hall fell
within his remit from an asset management perspective but not service operation.
The panel member asked how long it would take to recoup the costs for the
refurbishment of the Civic Hall through the running of events held there. The Head of
Corporate Landlord stated that the Service was currently reviewing the business
case. The Finance Business Partner (Place) stated that a business case would be
drawn up and would include commercial income that could fund the refurbishment
and also grant funding.

The Cabinet Member for City Environment stated that for 2017-2018, there was a
target saving of £3.8 million in the City Environment Division. £1.7 million of that
saving had been reprofiled into next year’s savings due to a contractual dispute with
the waste and recycling contractor — Amey Environment Services. Of the £3.8
million savings target, £2 million had been saved through reconfigurations,
transformations and contract efficiencies. The division was broadly on track to
achieve its saving target.

The Cabinet Member for City Environment stated that the proposed changes to the
waste collection service were currently on hold whilst the Council was in legal dispute
with Amey Environment Services. Seventy-Five percent of Local Authorities had
moved to fortnightly or three weekly collections, which had consequently had a
significant financial impact on Amey Environment Services. There was a legal
meeting scheduled to take place with Amey Environment Services to try and resolve
the legal dispute. The Council had been left with no alternative but to go to Court.
The Council Officer responsible for the service was extremely knowledgeable,
experienced and capable and believed the Council had a good case against Amey
Environment Services. The Council had a number of options available including
taking the service back in-house. The Cabinet had also looked at the option of a
super site which could provide a number of services, resulting in a significant saving.
Extra land did not need to be purchased and a workable transport solution had been
devised. He suggested that the Panel meet the Council Officer to discuss the waste
and recycling service at a future meeting of the Panel. The changes in the waste
collection proposals were ready from a Council perspective, which included
fortnightly collections and a chargeable garden waste service. The food collection
service was not viable and could be switched off relatively simply once the legal
dispute had been resolved with Amey Environment Services.

A panel member asked how long the legal dispute was likely to last and how the
Council was going to effectively communicate the changes to residents and take into
account the lessons of what had happened in Birmingham. The Cabinet Member in
response stated that communication was key. He was dismayed that the Express
and Star had misled the public by missing key parts out of the Council’s press
release regarding the proposed changes to the service, such as residents being
given a larger household waste bin. Social media would be utilised and a
comprehensive communications drive would be devised including use of
Wolverhampton Today, letter distribution, radio, stickers on bins and visiting

Page 5

Minutes



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

properties. When the new Council Tax electronic system was implemented the
Council would obtain additional email addresses allowing further electronic
communication. He hoped the legal dispute with Amey Environment Services would
be resolved by early next year. He couldn’t see any changes to the waste collection
service before April, the changes were more likely to be in the Summer or potentially
even later in the year. He didn’t envision all the proposed changes to commence on
the same day, rather a staggered approach.

The Cabinet Member for City Environment stated that whilst the Council did not
undertake grass cutting every week, choosing to do it every three weeks, the work
was still of a high standard compared to other Local Authorities in the West Midlands
region. The number of complaints had dropped dramatically but was subject to
weather conditions. A number of vacant posts had been deleted in the City
Environment Division meaning that team members had taken on extra
responsibilities. The Chair asked the Cabinet Member to keep the Panel informed of
the efforts to resolve the ongoing legal dispute with Amey Environment Services and
the Panel noted the good work that had been undertaken in the City Environment
Division.

The Cabinet Member for City Environment stated that the Council was currently
reviewing the Passenger Transport Service, mainly in the area of yellow buses. The
City Environment Division’s role was largely centred around the maintenance and
upkeep of the vehicles.

The Cabinet Member for City Environment gave an update on City Housing. The
Council had achieved £100,000 in savings in 2017-2018 through the review of
Homelessness and Housing Options services and the transfer of services to
Wolverhampton Homes. Further budget reductions and income generation targets of
£100,000 over the forthcoming two financial years were planned for City Housing.
Options to achieve the target were being developed. Wolverhampton homes were
carrying out good work and compared to other local authority areas they did a very
good job and delivered a comprehensive service. He did not have any issues
dealing with the Officers at Wolverhampton Homes. For the first time in 30 years, the
Council was moving forward with building houses and had setup a separate
company to kick start the construction of private housing. Four hundred new private
houses and a further four hundred for social letting were being developed. He was
delighted with the innovation undertaken to achieve the income streams for the
development.

A panel member asked about the £100,000 reduction in homelessness services. He
asked if the service was being reduced to achieve the savings target. The Cabinet
Member responded that Wolverhampton Homes were already delivering a service
and it made sense for them to take on the Homelessness Service to avoid
unnecessary costly duplication. Wolverhampton was highly regarded across the
West Midlands for how they helped the homeless. Everybody that was homeless
was given an offer of help, but some did not wish to take up the offer. The Chair
stated that in theory the Homelessness service would improve with the savings
implemented due to the consolidation of the service with Wolverhampton Homes.

Page 6

Minutes



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

The Cabinet Member for City Environment asked for his sincere thanks to Gwyn
James (Head of Strategic Transportation) to be placed on the record for his many
years of exemplary service to the Council, as he was about to leave the authority.
The Panel echoed the Cabinet Member’s sentiments.

The Chair asked for comments specifically on the Budget Consultation process. A
panel member stated that the Council was doing everything it could to engage
appropriately with residents on the budget proposals. A panel member stated that as
time had progressed the digital engagement process had grown stronger. Whilst the
Council had legal obligations regarding the budget consultation, it was important for
the Council to look at how many public meetings were actually needed, given the
relatively low attendance. The Cabinet Member for City Environment agreed that
attendance was not high and was continuing to decline year on year. A number of
strands needed to be addressed but he believed the public should still have the
opportunity of attending a public meeting.

Resolved:

A) That the feedback received at the meeting be forwarded to Scrutiny Board for
consolidation and onward response to Cabinet.

B) That the Scrutiny Panel response be finalised by the Chair and Vice-Chair of
the Scrutiny Panel and be forwarded to Scrutiny Board for consideration

The meeting closed at 6.55pm.

Page 7

Minutes



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 5

WOLVE:I{I-{IYP(\)IFV[PTON Vibrant and Sustainable City
COUNCIL Scrutiny Panel

1 March 2018

Report title Update — Parking Outside Schools Scrutiny
Review Report

Cabinet member with lead Councillor Steve Evans

responsibility City Environment
Wards affected All
Accountable director Ross Cook, Service Director, City Environment
Originating service Service area (not directorate)
Accountable employee(s) Earl Piggott-Smith Scrutiny Officer
Tel 01902 551251
Email earl.piggott-smith@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Report to be/has been List any meetings at which the report has
considered by been or will be considered, e.g.
Sustainability Advisory Group 5 February 2018
Cabinet 20 February 2018

Recommendation(s) for action or decision:
The Scrutiny Panel is recommended to:

1. Consider the comments of Cabinet about the recommendations in the attached scrutiny
review report.

2. Agree a date the Scrutiny Panel can receive a progress report on the implementation of
the recommendations accepted by Cabinet.

Page 9



1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.0

2.1

2.2

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.0

41

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Purpose

To provide an update to the panel on the progress made since the panel considered the
issue of parking outside schools at their meeting on 28 September 2018.

To give the panel the opportunity to further comment on the findings and
recommendations of the report presented to Cabinet.

To agree a date the Scrutiny Panel can receive a progress report on the implementation
of the recommendations accepted by Cabinet.

Background

The Vibrant and Sustainable City Scrutiny Panel met on 28 September 2017 to consider
what the Council and other agencies could do to alleviate the problem of inconsiderate or
illegal parking outside or near primary schools in Wolverhampton.

The panel considered evidence from a range of withesses. The panel also invited
members of the public to share their concerns and ideas for improving the situation in
response to a press release published on Wolverhampton Today.

Progress
The review report was presented to Sustainability Advisory Group on 5 February 2018 to
comment on the findings and recommendations. The recommendations in the report

were supported.

The review report was presented to Cabinet by the Chair Clir lan Angus at a meeting on
20 February 2018.

Cabinet Member Councillor Steve Evans commented that he welcomed the report and
wanted to put on record his thanks to the team involved in the review. The Cabinet
Member appreciated the way in which the review had been conducted and range of
people who contributed evidence.

Councillor Evans stated that they were happy to accept the review recommendations and
would implement in line with the Council’s financial remit.

Financial implications

The financial implications are detailed in the report to Cabinet presented on 20 February
2018.

Page 10



5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Legal implications

The legal implications are detailed in the report to Cabinet presented on 20 February
2018.

Equalities implications

The equalities implications are detailed in the report to Cabinet presented on 20 February
2018.

Environmental implications

The environmental implications are detailed in the report to Cabinet presented on 20
February 2018.

Human resources implications

The human resource implications are detailed in the report to Cabinet presented on 20
February 2018.

Corporate landlord implications

The corporate landlord implications are detailed in the report to Cabinet presented on 20
February 2018.

Schedule of background papers

Parking Outside Schools Scrutiny Review — Cabinet - 20 February 2018
Parking near Schools - Vibrant and Sustainable City Scrutiny Panel - 28 September 2017

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 11

CITY oF
WOLVERHAMPTON
COUNCIL

Cabinet Meeting
20 February 2018

Report title

Decision designation

Cabinet member with lead
responsibility

Corporate Plan priority
Key decision

In forward plan

Wards affected
Accountable Director
Originating service

Accountable employee

Report to be/has been
considered by

Parking Outside Schools Scrutiny Review

AMBER

Councillor Steve Evans
City Environment

People - Stronger Communities

No

Yes

(All Wards)

Ross Cook, Service Director, City Environment

Scrutiny

Earl Piggott-Smith Scrutiny Officer

Tel 01902 551251

Email earl.piggott-smith@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Directorate Leadership Team 8 January 2018

Strategic Executive Board 17 January 2018

Sustainability Advisory Group
Vibrant and Sustainable City Panel

1 February 2018
1 March 2018

Recommendation for decision:

The Cabinet is recommended to:

Approve the recommendations of the Vibrant and Sustainable City Scrutiny Panel as
detailed in the report at Section 9.0.

Page 235



1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Purpose

This report has been written to make Cabinet aware of the key findings and
recommendations following a review of the issue of inconsiderate and illegal parking
outside or near to the City’s primary schools.

The problems caused by illegal and inconsiderate parking outside primary school’s links
directly to a priority in the Council’s Corporate Plan 2016-2019 - promoting and
enabling healthy lifestyles, keeping the City clean and keeping the City moving.

The panel considers that efforts to reduce traffic congestion during the school run and to
create a safe and pleasant environment will result in an increase in the number of
parents who are willing to walk their children to school.

The panel also wants to encourage a wider debate about the need to find sustainable
and effective solutions to the problems highlighted during the evidence session.

Background

The Vibrant and Sustainable City Scrutiny Panel (VSCSP) met on the 28 September
2017 to consider witness evidence from a range of interested groups about the issue of
inconsiderate and illegal parking outside and near to the City’s primary schools. The
following link will give details of the evidence considered at the meeting.

There is evidence from published research which explains that parents’ fears about the
safety of their children — particularly around walking to school independently - is a
significant factor in persuading them to drive their children to school, rather than allowing
them to walk with them, where this is possible.

The number of children killed or seriously injured as pedestrians rises markedly around
the ages of 11 and 12 as they move from primary to secondary school, before declining
slightly from 13 onwards. Furthermore, it was stated that this statistical ‘spike’ highlights
the crucial role that parents can play in helping young children to learn important road
safety skills before they reach this dangerous transition.

The review has therefore focused on the issue of parking outside primary schools as
survey responses highlight the fears of parents and residents about the safety of children
walking to school which has contributed to increased use of cars for short journeys and
traffic congestion during the school run.

The issue of parking outside schools was agreed by Councillors as an issue that met the
criteria for selecting topics — for example, an issue of interest to the wider public. The
topic has generated a huge public response to a press release published on
Wolverhampton Today (Facebook) asking people to share their experiences about the
problems caused by illegal and inconsiderate parking outside schools. The issue was
also reported on the local news media which led to further public comments.

PBgge248


https://wolverhamptonintranet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=507&MId=7426&Ver=4

2.6

2.7

2.8

29

3.0

3.1

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

The overall aim of the review was to make recommendations that will help create a safer
walking environment during the school rush hour periods to help reduce traffic
congestion, when the issue of parking outside primary schools is most acute. The
members of the scrutiny panel also wanted to better understand the scale and nature of
the problem with a view to making recommendations to help improve the situation.

The panel invited withesses and members of the public to both highlight their
experiences caused by problem parking but also to make suggestions of what could help
to improve the situation — see link for details of the evidence presented at the meeting on
28 September 2017 and the notes of the discussion. Appendix 1 to this report details
sample responses from the public when asked to share their experiences of problem
parking.

The members of the panel considered evidence from residents, head teachers, parents,
the police, school crossing patrol services, parking services, and a national charity —
Living Streets - which aims to encourage children and parents to walk to school.

The members of the panel also considered a range of published reports and examples of
good practice that would help to inform their findings and recommendations. For
example, Leicester City Council have published Leicester’'s Parking Improvement Action
Plan 2016-2019 which details plans to reduce problems of traffic congestion.

Summary of Parking Enforcement Legislation and Guidance
Reducing and preventing accidents

Local authorities have a statutory duty under section 39 of the 1988 Road
Traffic Act to “take steps both to reduce and prevent accidents”. The 1988
Road Traffic Act, Section 39 states:

(1) provide for promoting road safety by disseminating information or advice relating to
the use of roads.

(2) each local authority must prepare and carry out a programme of measures designed
to promote road safety and may make contributions towards the cost of measures for
promoting road safety taken by other authorities or bodies.

(3) each local authority:

a. must carry out studies into accidents arising out of the use of vehicles on roads within
their area

b. must, in the light of those studies, take such measures as appear to the authority to
be appropriate to prevent such accidents, including the dissemination of information
and advice relating to the use of the roads, the giving of practical training to road
users, the construction, improvement, maintenance or repair of roads for which they
are the highway authority and other measures taken in the exercise of their powers
for controlling, protecting or assisting the movement of traffic on roads

Page 287


https://wolverhamptonintranet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=507&MId=7426&Ver=4
https://wolverhamptonintranet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g7426/Printed%20minutes%2028th-Sep-2017%2018.00%20Vibrant%20and%20Sustainable%20City%20Scrutiny%20Panel.pdf?T=1

3.2

3.3

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

c. in constructing new roads, must take such measures as appear to the authority to be
appropriate to reduce the possibilities of such accidents when the roads come into
use.

Civil Parking Enforcement

Civil Parking Enforcement (CPE) means that local authorities, rather than the police, can
choose to be responsible for enforcing on-street parking controls - most parking
contraventions, including parking on yellow lines and in parking bays, are no longer
criminal offences. The regulations are detailed in Schedule 8 Traffic Management Act
2004 — civil enforcement areas and enforcement authorities.

The police have responsibility for enforcing endorsable and most types of moving traffic
offences and can also act against drivers where security or other traffic policing issues
are involved. The police can issue a parking ticket for causing an obstruction.

City of Wolverhampton Council (CWC) Parking Services can take enforcement action
against inconsiderate or illegal parking which occurs immediately outside or on the street
near a school where a valid Traffic Regulation Orders (TRO) applies.

It takes approximately six months to issue a TRO and it is subject to public consultation
about any proposed changes before it can be introduced — see Appendix 2 for an
example of a TRO.

A maximum number of 13 Civil Enforcement Officers (CEQ) are available daily, over two
shifts — to cover the City Centre and other areas. The CCTV vehicle has a scheduled visit
to every school at least once a term, but dependent on circumstances the timings can
change.

A CEO can issue a Penalty Charge Notice (PCN) to any vehicle which stops on a yellow
zig zag line when the zig zag lines are operational (schedule 7 paragraph 4 section
(2)(i)(i) The PCN is £70 but will be reduced to £35 if paid within 21 days.

Local authorities are required to use any income from parking tickets for the purposes
described in accordance with the Traffic Management Act 2004.

CCTV Vehicle Enforcement

Local authorities have a duty to tackle dangerous parking and the Traffic Management
Act 2004 allows councils to enforce parking contraventions by CCTV cameras in problem
areas. CWC use a CCTV vehicle to address parking at hotspots or problem areas where
motorists are putting the safety of others at risk and causing unnecessary congestion.

Legislation only allows authorised CCTV vehicles to enforce school keep clears signs.

PRgge248



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Parking on school zigzag lines

Yellow zig zag lines outside schools that have signs listing hours of operation are
enforced legally by the council by issuing a penalty charge notice. The hours of operation
stated usually relate to drop off and pick up times, but outside these windows, drivers are
legally permitted to park on the yellow zig zag lines unless a TRO is present restricting
parking either sides of the road.

Yellow zig zag lines without signs simply advise motorists not to wait or park on them at
any time.

What does a ‘grace period’ mean?

Grace applies where a vehicle is stationery in a designated parking place and the vehicle
has been left beyond the permitted parking period. No penalty charge is payable for the
contravention where the vehicle has been left beyond the permitted parking period for a
period not exceeding 10 minutes. Grace period does not apply to locations which are
designated parking places — for example locations with ‘no waiting’ restrictions (yellow
lines). A ‘designated parking place’ means a parking place established by a Traffic
Regulation Order.

Is ‘pavement parking’ legal?

There are issues with the terminology in this area, so it is important to understand what is
being referred to when this term is used:

e ‘Pavement parking’ is parking where one or more wheels of a vehicle are on the
pavement

e ‘On-street’ parking is any other parking at the side of the road

There is no national prohibition against either on-street or pavement parking except in the
latter case in London and more widely in relation to heavy commercial vehicles.

However, it is an offence to drive onto the pavement, whether with intention to park or
not. Because this is a criminal offence, as opposed to most of civil parking offences, it is
enforceable by the police, not the local authority.

Local authorities and the police may act to tackle on-street and pavement parking under
legislation governing obstruction and dangerous parking, designating limited areas of ‘no
pavement parking’ through a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO), or establishing a special
parking area.

Page 249



4.0

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Findings

In evidence to the review from the Service Lead - Traffic & Road Safety it was stated that
there is an issue about the perception of the scale of child accidents and the number of
near misses across Wolverhampton. The panel was advised to note the following:

e between 2012 and 2017 (5 years) there were 198 child pedestrian casualties in
Wolverhampton of which just 11 were outside schools during school travel times (1
serious, 10 slights). This equates to just 5.5% of Wolverhampton’s child pedestrian
casualties.

e a sizable percentage of the complaints received by City of Wolverhampton Council
are concerns about parking on footways/verges, drivers blocking resident driveways
and congestion issues rather than significant road safety risks because of
inconsiderate or illegal parking near schools.

e in most cases high levels of on-street parking near to schools can act as a ‘traffic
calming’ measure by reducing traffic speeds that would otherwise be higher if traffic
was free flowing. Manor Primary School on A4126 Ettingshall Road is a good
example of where traffic speeds outside of school travel times are significantly higher
in free flow conditions.

The panel accept these points and want to offer reassurance to parents about the scale
of the issue and the level of risk. However, it is clear to panel members and witnesses
that they want to see progress made to reduce the number of accidents and near misses
involving vehicles. The panel also want to respond to the real concerns expressed by
both parents and residents about the problems caused and the need to find sustainable
local solutions to the issue.

The panel share the strong views expressed by the public in the survey responses and
witnesses evidence about the importance of making real progress in reducing the
number of complaints about illegal or inconsiderate parking outside schools. The panel
acknowledge the need for everyone to work constructively to find local solutions that
create a safe and pleasant travelling environment for everyone — but accept that there
are no simple solutions which can resolve often conflicting interests of schools, parents
and residents living near schools.

An increase in the number of parents who walk their children to school rather than drive
will clearly reduce congestion and improve the health of children. A key issue highlighted
in evidence presented by the Public Health Service is the need to reduce unnecessary
short car journeys - 63% of people make a journey of less than two miles by car at
least once a week. Around four in ten say they make journeys by car that could
easily be completed by walking (41%), by cycling (43%) or on the bus (35%). (British
Social Attitudes)

PRgge240


http://www.bsa.natcen.ac.uk/latest-report/british-social-attitudes-28/transport.aspx
http://www.bsa.natcen.ac.uk/latest-report/british-social-attitudes-28/transport.aspx

4.5

4.6

4.7

5.0

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

The panel agree that while public information and provision of alternative travel options
have a key role in improving the situation there is also a need to have a strong and
visible deterrent to stop or deter people who continue to park illegally outside primary
schools from doing so. The panel consider that it is important that there are real
consequences for people who choose to park illegally.

The comments from members of the public suggest that there is a lack of confidence in
the willingness of the Council and Police to provide the necessary staff resources or use
their enforcement powers to act against drivers whose behaviour places children and
other road users at risk.

Members of the public were invited to share details of problem parking outside their local
schools — along with any suggestions to improve the situation. A press release statement
was published on 25 September 2017 which led a press report on ITV news. In addition,

300 responses were received from members of the public on the Wolverhampton Today
Facebook page.

The following is a summary of the general findings from the review:

a. The issue of illegal, dangerous and inconsiderate parking is a problem outside many
primary schools in the city, but it is not a problem unique to Wolverhampton. At the
national level local authorities have investigated this issue and introduced different
policies to find lasting solutions to create safe walking routes to school.

b. Important to monitor the effectiveness and efficiency of the Council’s parking
enforcement policy and its contribution to improving road safety. The policy should
support the wider aims of the Council but success of the policy should not be simply
judged by an increase in the number of parking fines. The Department of Transport
published a list of criteria that can be used to assess the effect of the enforcement
policy- see below:

i.  the justification for, and accuracy of, existing traffic orders;

ii. the adequacy, accuracy and quality of traffic signing and road markings which
restrict or permit parking within or outside a Controlled Parking Zone;

iii. the level of enforcement necessary for compliance;

iv. the levels of penalty charges;

v. the need to resource the operation effectively and ensure that all parking staff
are appropriately trained; and

vi. impact on traffic flow, i.e. traffic or congestion outcomes

c. City of Wolverhampton Council published a Walking Strategy Policy document in
2005 — the aim of the policy was to “encourage walking by recognising its role as
a mode of transport and part of the solution to tackling traffic congestion as
well as urban regeneration and to improve our environment and health”. The
policy detailed a series of actions to achieve this and it is useful to review the
document with a specific focus on the issue of parking outside schools and what can

Page 291


http://portal/corporate/city-people/Lists/Posts/Post.aspx?List=ccf65e96-5210-4079-8dbe-e05d4cc534c5&ID=5169&Web=1644cc99-6605-4520-9651-bccfe6243cfe
https://www.facebook.com/WolverhamptonToday/photos/a.253244314723537.59564.187662224615080/1517487374965885/?type=3&theater
https://www.facebook.com/WolverhamptonToday/photos/a.253244314723537.59564.187662224615080/1517487374965885/?type=3&theater
http://www.wolverhampton.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=2618&p=0

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

be done to encourage more people to choose walking as an alternative to driving
short distances.

. A significant increase in the number of parents who walk their children to school is the
desired outcome for members of the panel and is an important part of the solution to
problems outlined by witnesses.

. The public want to see a regular visible presence by Parking Enforcement Officers
and Police to deter offenders and increase the chances of offenders being caught.

Irresponsible parking can force pedestrians to step out into the street to get around
parked vehicles. This is a key issue highlighted in responses from the public. This is
particularly challenging for parents with prams, or blind or partially-sighted people, or
people with mobility difficulties when using pavements outside or near schools.

. The issue of illegal and inconsiderate parking near schools is a public safety issue —
the actions of some drivers presents a danger to the safety of our school children.
Schools have introduced a range of local schemes to reduce traffic congestion and
encourage parents and carers to follow parking restrictions and advice, for example,
staggered starting times, with varying degrees of success.

. Schools have tried several initiatives to reduce the problem of illegal and or
inconsiderate parking — a lot of school staff time is spent on trying to enforce the
current policy and dealing with complaints from parents and other residents.

There is no ‘silver bullet’ solution and you cannot simply enforce your way out of the
problem; it is as much about awareness raising, education and the provision of
alternative safe and sustainable travel options so that parents and children can
consider walking to school their natural choice — routes to schools that have crossings
which are sufficient and fit for purpose and streets are designed with people in mind
are all vital factors in creating an environment where people want to walk to school.

There was support among VSSC panel and in the public responses for stronger
enforcement action against parking offenders. Between the period 4.4.17 to 15.7.17 —
(63 school term days) a total of 88 Penalty Charge Notices(PCN) have been issued.

. The response from schools was very positive about the impact of work being led by
Living Streets to encourage parents and children to walk to school.

The panel would like planning appeals considering primary school expansion plans to
give more consideration to findings of traffic impact assessments and plans to
mitigate the impact of the expected increase in the number of vehicles on the road
network.

PRgge230



6.0

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

The problem of parking outside schools is compounded by a range of factors,
including:

a. The massive growth in the use of cars for short trips and the increase in the number
of households that have two or more cars parked on the road which can lead to
delays in journey times at peak times during the day. The increase in the number of
households where both parents/carers work, who are can’t walk their children and
drop them off at school on the way to work.

b. The high number of complaints about drivers ignoring parking restrictions and the lack
of signage outside schools. There is an issue of confusion among some members of
the public about the situations when a PCN can be issued.

c. The growing demand for school places at popular schools has led to the creation of
extra provision — adding further pressure on the existing road network. The Royal
School Wolverhampton in evidence to the review reported that the school has grown
significantly in the last 2 years which has meant a significant issue for parking near
and outside the school. The current number of pupils on roll is 1200, which is
expected to rise to 1500 by 2021.

d. The location of our schools and associated access routes - many were built in the
1950s/60s, if not earlier, and were not designed in keeping with today’s traffic
pressures and working patterns. The current road and transport network was
developed to manage car traffic flows at a set level, but is insufficient to
accommodate the volume of traffic now using it during peak times.

e. Furthermore, the introduction of more Traffic Regulation Orders to restrict parking will
not provide a quick solution — there is evidence of people continuing to park illegally
despite the legal restrictions in force. The introduction of TROs and other road
restrictions has shifted the problem of inconsiderate parking to surrounding streets
beyond the immediate area; which has led to complaints from residents and other
users about their impact — see below.

I am writing on behalf of Wildside Activity Centre in Hordern Road which is immediately
opposite SS Peter and Paul Catholic Primary Academy and Nursery. We read the article
in the Express and Star newspaper on 26th September about launching a drive on the
problem of parking outside schools, and wanted to let you know that parking along this
part of Hordern Road is becoming increasingly hazardous particularly since the school
installed a barrier on their own driveway to prevent parents parking on their premises.

The bad parking affects cars, buses, cyclists etc. commuting along the road, and parking
is on footpaths, outside houses, in the entrance to Wildside which also has pedestrian
access to the Northern House Academy. The danger from our point of view is when staff
and visitors cannot drive in due to parked vehicles meaning they add to the chaos.

Page 2%3




7.0

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Should it be necessary for an emergency vehicle to attend our site at these times of day
then it would be difficult. We have groups of school children, vulnerable adults and many
other users that need access to our site.

We would be grateful if consideration could be given to looking at ways of improving the
situation and hopefully arrive at a happy compromise for everyone as we appreciate that
some parents may not have an alternative to cars.

f. The behaviour of some parent drivers when challenged about inconsiderate or illegal
parking is a cause for concern. The panel heard evidence which highlighted
numerous examples of verbal threats and acts of violence against people and in
some instances children, when asking drivers to move their vehicle to a location
which does not put the safety of other road users at risk.

g. Itis important to note that in evidence to the review it was reported that parents at
some schools would contact other parents to warn them when a patrol or CCTV car
was operating in the area.

h. The parking service is already experiencing difficulties in recruiting people willing to
work one and half hours in the morning and afternoon sessions required, who face
abuse from drivers when challenged about their driving or parking habits. There will
be cost implications to CWC if more CEOs are deployed for schools and also
evidence that people return to normal poor parking habits after a period of targeted
enforcement action.

i. More parental choice about schools — children either cannot attend their local schools
or parents choose to send their child to another school, which may require longer
journey travel times and as a result there is increasing reliance on friends and family
members taking and collecting children to and from school — adding further pressure
on the road network.

Updates on progress
Sustainability Advisory Group

A copy of the report was considered at a meeting of the Sustainability Advisory Group on
5 February 2018. The group supported the review findings and recommendations.

Living Streets

The panel note the early success of number of local initiatives and positive responses
from children, parents and schools to the work of Living Streets. The panel support the
aim of the organisation to - every child that can, walks to school. The panel was
recently advised by Tom Richards, Project Coordinator West Midlands (Schools), that
nine local schools have registered on the programme. In addition, there are discussions
ongoing with two Multi Academy Trusts to bring six more schools on board. The panel

PBgge232



https://www.livingstreets.org.uk/

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

also welcome the prospect that funding for the post will be extended to August 2018 to
allow this important work to continue.

Wolverhampton Park and Stride scheme

The panel were given an update on the plans to build on the previous initiative ‘Beat the
Street’ programme which ended in 2017 by introducing a Park and Stride scheme.
Further details on the scheme can be found here.

Based on data from the local adult lifestyle survey and the Health Related Behaviour
Survey for children and young people potential areas were identified where a pilot would
be beneficial to be run.

At the date of drafting four potential primary schools have been identified — work is on-
going to identify possible sites within a 10-minute walk of the schools involved. The
response from schools has been positive to the idea. Potential costs of marketing the
scheme will be factored into the pilot. The owners of the land will be approached for their
agreement, which may involve further costs. The scheme will hopefully be launched
during spring 2018 and the impact will be assessed at the end of the school academic
year.

Safety Outside Schools (SOS)

The issue of parking outside schools was also highlighted by Wolverhampton South East
MP Pat McFadden who launched an initiative called ‘Safety Outside Schools (SOS). The
initiative was launched at Hill Avenue Primary School on 10 November 2017. The
scheme involves school children taking on the role of junior road safety officers. Further
details about the scheme can be found here.

Public Health Service

The Director of Public Health made the following comments in response to findings and
recommendations of the review:

e The Council to look further at the potential of “filtered permeability” — closing off
certain roads to discourage through-traffic movements, some of which could be
closed to school-run traffic. The policy has been used quite successfully in certain
London boroughs like Waltham Forest.

e We support a publicity campaign/factsheet which should also contain key relevant
public health information and would be happy to help with putting together. This
should contain more than just parking and enforcement advice — becoming more of a
“self-help package” for encouraging active travel in general and walking/cycling to
school.

Page 285


https://beatthestreet.me/wolves
https://beatthestreet.me/wolves
https://www.livingstreets.org.uk/media/2035/park-and-stride-print.pdf
https://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s31647/Wolverhampton%20Healthy%20Lifestyles%20Survey.pdf
https://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s31647/Wolverhampton%20Healthy%20Lifestyles%20Survey.pdf
https://www.expressandstar.com/news/education/2017/11/07/mp-takes-to-streets-to-tackle-school-parking-issues/#I35PbJoIFoYUhLSb.99
https://www.sustrans.org.uk/sites/default/files/images/files/Route-Design-Resources/4_Streets_and_roads_05_03_15.pdf

8.0

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

The school exclusion zone pilot from Solihull is an interesting concept and could
easily be applied here, as well as the “Play Streets” initiative from Bristol. We would
encourage both concepts to be explored over the coming months.

We support investigating the feasibility of a second CCTV camera car, as raising the
profile of these operations may further discourage parking on zig-zag lines, if there is
a greater threat of being caught.

Conclusions

a)

f)

¢))

An approach based heavily on enforcement action, while understandable from a view
of the public, will not deal with the scale of the problem of illegal and inconsiderate
parking outside or near schools. However, it is important that parking offenders
should expect to be fined to deter other drivers from similar behaviour.

The wider public need to have confidence that CWC’s enforcement policy is working
effectively and that there are the necessary resources to issue fines and or respond
to complaints about illegal or inconsiderate parking outside or near schools.

A sustainable solution to parking problem outside schools requires a combination of
targeted enforcement action and improved parental education which leads to a shift in
thinking to consider other alternatives to driving — particularly for short distances.

CWC must continue to support initiatives that work towards reducing the number of
cars used for short journeys to schools, where walking is an alternative.

CWC cannot tackle this problem alone — it requires a genuine partnership approach
between the Police, schools, parents and residents.

Funding cuts mean that the Police and the CWC have fewer resources to dedicate to
tackling problem parking outside schools and to respond to the high number of
complaints from residents. However, both organisations have a statutory
responsibility and powers to act to respond to an issue which the public have great
concerns about.

The Government must continue to work with local authorities to ensure that good
practice and guidance about parking enforcement is coordinated and disseminated.

PBgge238


http://www.solihull.gov.uk/Resident/Parking-travel-roads/road-safety/Solihull-School-Streets-Pilot/School-Streets-FAQ
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/documents/20182/32895/Playing%20Out%20app%20form_Sep%2014.pdf/8c4d0e6b-ba40-491a-a322-206a99fae730

9.0

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Recommendations to Cabinet

The recommendations of the VSCSP have been arranged under broad themes:
supporting behaviour change, providing information and advice, enforcement action
against persistent or serious parking offenders, and encouraging and supporting walking
and other alternatives to short car trips during the school run.

Supporting behaviour change

1. Children and Young People’s Health Improvement Adviser, to be invited to report on
the impact of the Park & Stride scheme at the July 2018 meeting of VSCSP.
Depending on the success of the scheme the City of Wolverhampton Council and
other partners such as Wolverhampton Homes should be challenged to consider
offering “relief” parking provision on nearby land close to schools at peak times to
reduce pressure on the road network.

Response: The Public Health Service is currently being restructured. The consultation
on the new service ends on 19.2.18. The Director of Public Health will consider the
feasibility of introducing the scheme but this will depend on the resources available.
Director of Public Health to present a progress report to VSSC panel 6.12.18.

2. All primary schools in Wolverhampton to be encouraged to consider what further
changes would help to either reduce the number of vehicles or improve traffic flow at
peak times during the day. For example, The Royal Wolverhampton School have
introduced a voluntary one-way system and the use of park and drop on school sites
or safe drop off points, and Uplands Junior School have extended front verges to be
used as a layby for drop offs. Schools to be actively encouraged to report issues of
problem parking to their local councillor to highlight the issue.

Providing information and advice

3. Service Lead, Traffic and Road Safety, to lead the development of a factsheet in
conjunction with Councillor Development and IT Advisory Group. The information
should be published in the councillor learning page. The factsheet should set out the
respective enforcement roles and legal powers of the Police and the Local Authority
to tackle problems linked to issues of parking outside and near schools. The factsheet
should include details about what action can be taken for illegal or inconsiderate
parking, by whom and how i.e. CCTV vehicle can only issue FPNs against motorists
parked on zig zag lines, and where to report concerns to.

4. Service Lead, Traffic and Road Safety, to develop a similar information/Q&A resource
for the public on CWC'’s website which summarises the respective responsibilities and
enforcement powers to deal with complaints about parking outside schools, and how
to report a problem. Consideration to be given to updating CWC'’s Report It app to
allow people to report problems of illegal parking directly.

Page 257



This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

5. CWC Communications Team to lead the development of a communications
campaign, utilising Wolverhampton Today and Twitter, to:

a) promote safe and respectful parking outside schools and b) promote walking to
school — it should draw on the law, relevant statistics and learning from the
scrutiny session.

b) campaign activity could be linked to/heightened during International Walk to
School month held annually in October.

c) The responses submitted by the public for improving the situation to be actively
pursued and promoted if there is evidence that it will have desired impact.

6. Service Lead, Traffic and Road Safety, to monitor outcomes from other regional and
national initiatives, including the car exclusion zone pilot on Solihull (“School
Streets”), with a view to learning from, and implementing established good practice
and report findings to a future meeting of VSSC panel. The Service Lead to report on
the impact of introducing parking TROs outside schools or surrounding areas in
responding to the concerns of parents and residents.

Enforcement of regulations to support behaviour change

7. The Leader of the Council to be invited to write to the Secretary of State for Transport
summarising the issues experienced in Wolverhampton and request that they review
the effectiveness of regulations governing TROs and parking enforcement

8. City of Wolverhampton Council to continue to seek, where appropriate, to expand the
use of loading bans near schools and commit to associated enforcement resource.
CWC should take account of all road users and pedestrians when taking decisions on
pavement parking restrictions or allowances, and clearly indicate what rules are in
place and their purpose.

9. Parking Services Manager (CWC) should publish details of how performance in
relation to enforcement activity is measured in their parking annual reports. Service
Lead, Traffic and Road Safety, Annual to present report to VSSC panel which details
performance against criteria suggested by Department of Transport so that it can be
supported by the public.

10.Parking Services Manager (CWC) must make full use of its powers to issue Fixed
Penalty Notices (FPNs) for vehicles parked illegally. VSCS Panel recommends a
zero-tolerance approach and that persistent offenders must be targeted. The number
of parking fines issued for parking illegally outside schools to be reported six monthly
to VSCP to assess the impact of the policy as part of a review of the effectiveness
and efficiency of the current parking enforcement policy.

PRgge238


http://www.walkbiketoschool.org/learn-more/about-the-events/about-walk-to-school-day/
http://www.walkbiketoschool.org/learn-more/about-the-events/about-walk-to-school-day/

10.0

10.1

10.2

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

11.The Cabinet Member for City Environment to review the level of resource within the
Council available to promote behaviour change and enforcement against illegal
parking outside schools. The review to consider if the current policy is contributing to
achieving the vision detailed in ‘Safety Outside Schools Programme’ and ‘Safer
Routes to School Initiative’.

12.The Cabinet Member for City Environment to consider and report on the feasibility of
providing a second CCTV vehicle and other staff resources to provide extra capacity
that offer parents and residents increased confidence that the Council will act against
people who park illegally outside schools.

Supporting an increase in the number of parents who walk to school with their
children and creating safer walking spaces for other road users

13. Chair of VSCS Panel to write to the Mayor of the West Midlands Combined Authority
summarising the issues experienced in Wolverhampton and to respond to the issues
raised. The letter to invite the WMCA to commit to developing and or outlining a
strategic approach to funding the creation of safer walking spaces for parents and
children across the region — particularly primary aged school children.

14.VSCS Panel should be invited to comment on future primary school expansion plans
in areas already badly affected by problem parking to review the evidence detailed in
the traffic impact assessment and specifically what is being proposed to mitigate the
effects arising from an increase in traffic congestion in the area.

15. Representatives from Living Streets to be invited to report on the impact of its work in
Wolverhampton after 12 months, with a view to making further recommendations to
Cabinet about what further action is needed to build on progress.

16. Director of Public Health to lead on the drafting of a review of the City of
Wolverhampton Council’s ‘Walking Strategy’ (August 2005) and to provide a revised
draft to a future meeting of VSCS Panel for consideration on 16.12.18.

17.Scrutiny Officer to prepare report in consultation with Service Lead, Traffic and Road
Safety, and other witnesses to Scrutiny Board on 11 September 2018.18 with a
summary of progress against all the above recommendations

Evaluation of alternative options

The draft recommendations have been shared with withesses for their comments and
changes made as appropriate that will support the shared aim of wanting to reduce the
number of people who park illegally or inconsiderately during the school run periods.

The recommendations acknowledge the challenges facing the Council and the Police to
enforce traffic regulations around schools and the need to consider alternatives which do
not rely on enforcement action as solution.

Page 239


https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/263054/guidance-transport-assessment.pdf

11.0

11.2

11.3

11.4

11.6

12.0

121

12.2

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Reasons for decisions

The problems caused by illegal and inconsiderate parking outside schools link directly to
the priorities detailed in the Council’s Corporate Plan 2016-19 - promoting and enabling
healthy lifestyles, keeping the city clean and keeping the city moving.

Council action in dealing with problem parking will contribute towards raising awareness
of the issue among the public and provide challenge to key organisations about the
effectiveness of their current policies and practices and respond to criticism of their
impact.

The Council has a statutory duty to reduce the number of road accidents and it is
important to have confidence that there is the necessary level of cooperation from all key
agencies to achieve this and give public reassurance.

The panel consider that efforts to reduce traffic congestion and improve traffic flow will
contribute to achieving these objectives and respond to the issues highlighted in witness
evidence and public comments about the range of problems caused by poor parking
outside or near schools.

The Council will be seen by the public as being responsive to the issue of problem
parking outside schools. The issue of problem parking outside schools itself has been
longstanding and judging by witness evidence has led to a range of disputes locally for
which schools have struggled to find a sustainable solution.

There is a consensus among witnesses that more needs to be done to reduce the
number of complaints about illegal or inconsiderate parking outside schools. The issue of
parking outside schools has led to media interest and the local MP highlighting the range
of problems caused by problem parking and the need for action.

A reduction in the number of people who park illegally or inconsiderately will create an
environment that will encourage parents to consider alternatives to using a car where
possible when taking children to school and reduce traffic congestion during the school
runs.

Financial implications

Recommendations 11 and 12 to Cabinet could have specific financial implications for the
Council but at this stage these are with the service for consideration in line with existing
budget provisions. Any investment requirements will be subject to a business case in line
with existing processes and be included in future reports to Councillors as necessary.

Costs associated with any additional Traffic Regulation Orders will be accommodated
within existing revenue budgets within City Environment.

PRgge2@0



13.0

13.1

13.2

14.0

141

14.2

15.0

15.1

16.0

16.1

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Any enforcement income received through the issue of penalty charge notices will be
used as directed in the Traffic Management Act 2004.
[TT/24012018/V]

Legal implications

We are here dealing with three types of enforcement (CPNs, FPNs and prosecutions)
and Council Enforcement Officers will need to be very clear what they can and cannot do
and what processes they need to follow. A robust policy will need to be in place and
followed and enforcement will need to be sustained, meaning extra resources will be
required.

This will require legal involvement and enforcement officers (Parking Attendants / CEOs)
on the streets.
[LW/22012018/U]

Equalities implications

There are no direct equalities implications arising from the recommendations in the
review report. However, careful consideration will need to be given by the responsible
lead to the equalities implications and a full EA is required to ensure that those equality
groups mentioned in the report and any others unmentioned are protected from any
adverse impacts. In particularly, the needs of children or parents/carers with walking
disabilities will need to be considered when making changes to existing arrangements.
The overall aim should be to provide alternatives to parents using their car to take
children to school, particularly for short journeys, wherever possible.

It is important to note that not all disabled people will be adversely affected by the review
recommendation which seeks to encourage more parents, where possible, to walk to
school with their children - creating safer walking routes and spaces outside schools will
benefit everyone.

Environmental implications

A reduction in level of car usage, particularly for short journeys, will support wider Council
aims to improve air quality and to reduce traffic congestion at peak times. The findings
and recommendations support the Safer Routes to Schools Initiative — the aim of which is
to address concerns over rising traffic levels and school gate parking issues and offer
reassurance to parents.

Human resources implications

The report recommendation 12 make comment about funding to considered for an extra
CCTV vehicle. The panel are concerned about the level of staff resources in parking
services. The panel consider current resources are insufficient to provide the necessary
support to schools and deal effectively with the scale of the parking problems highlighted
during the review.

Page 261



This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]
17.0 Corporate Landlord implications

17.1  There are no corporate landlord implications arising from the recommendations in this
report.

18.0 Schedule of background papers

18.1 Parking outside Schools - Vibrant and Sustainable City Scrutiny Panel — 28 September
2017.

19.0 Appendices
Appendix 1: Responses from members of the public and suggestions

Appendix 2: Example of Traffic Regulation Order

PRgge260


http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s54023/Parking%20near%20Schools.pdf
http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s54023/Parking%20near%20Schools.pdf

INTERNAL - PROTECT

CITY oF

Briefin g Note WOLVERHAMPTON

COUNCIL

Title: Dog Control in Wolverhampton

Prepared by: Shaun Walker Date: 19/2/2018

Intended Internal Partner organisation Public Confidential
audience: [ L]
1.0 Purpose

1.1 To provide an over-arching report on dog control in Wolverhampton and to specifically
address a number of questions raised previously.

2.0 Background and context

2.1 City of Wolverhampton Council has several key responsibilities relating to animals in
general and dogs in particular. These range from animal welfare and disease control to
public safety. In 2017 Chair of the Vibrant and Sustainable City Scrutiny Panel requested
Dog Control Enforcement to be an item on the scrutiny agenda. The Chair requested a
number of questions to be answered in the report, these were as follows:

¢ Outline of the service provided by the Council including number of staff
e A summary of the main legislation

e Are there any changes to the legislation and performance measures for the service
expected?

e How does Wolverhampton’s enforcement policy compare to other neighbouring
authorities?

e An annual breakdown of the income received by the service through fines / fixed penalty
notices (last three years)

e Details of any Orders in place across Wolverhampton and how well they are working?

e How does the Council communicate details about the services the Council offers such
as advice on reporting noisy or stray dogs?

e Any new initiatives planned for the foreseeable future?

Version [1] Page 31 Page 1 of 5



INTERNAL - PROTECT

3.0 Proposal/Options
3.1 Outline of the service provided by the Council including number of staff

The Public Protection service sits within City Environment and is comprised of both
Commercial and Residential teams.

The functions relating to dog control falls under the remit of the Residential group. In total
there are eleven officers that deal with a wide range of service request each year totalling
around 6,000 separate requests for service.

A relatively small number of these relate to dog control with fly tipping and vehicle
abandonment investigations currently making up the greatest volume. For around ten
years, our stray dog warden service has been outsourced to a private provider and for the
last 2 years the majority of dog fouling enforcement patrols have been carried out by
Kingdom Security.

In 2015 we also entered in a shared service arrangement with Staffordshire Animal Health
to discharge certain important but niche areas of activity relating to livestock disease control
and investigation into illegal puppy imports.

All other activities are delivered in-house and this mix of service delivery methods works
well and is thought to be cost effective.

4.0 A summary of the main legislation used by the Council

4.1 Nuisance Dogs — Community Protection Notices

The grounds to use these new powers is persistent and unreasonable conduct which is
having a detrimental effect on the quality of life for those in the locality.

This power is used by the Council to deal with dogs that frequently roam onto other
property and cause nuisance. It is also used where accumulations of dog faeces are not
removed from private gardens to such an extent that it impacts on neighboring
residents.

4.2  Stray Dogs

Sections 149 & 150 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 places a duty on local
authorities to seize and detain stray dogs from public places. A person claiming to be
the owner of a seized dog is not entitled to have the dog returned unless he pays all the
expenses incurred by reason of its detention.

The new microchipping legislation and use of social media to advertise lost / stray dogs
has resulted in fewer call-outs for the dog warden with a commensurate reduction in the
Council stray dog budget.

4.3  Microchipping

Page 32
Version [1] Page 2 of 5



INTERNAL - PROTECT

Microchipping of Dogs (England) Regulations 2015 made it compulsory for all dogs over
the age of 8 weeks in England to be fitted with microchips from 6 April 2016. Dogs now
need to be microchipped and registered with their keepers’ contact details and all
keepers, including breeders, must keep these details up to date.

If a dog without a microchip comes to the Councils attention, its keeper is routinely
served with a notice requiring the dog to be microchipped.

4.4  Dog Fouling / Dogs on Lead and certain Dog Prohibitions

In October 2017, the previous Dog Control Orders from 2007 lapsed and became the
Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) 2017. Following widespread public consultation
in the Summer/Autumn of 2017 including groups representing the dogs and dog
walkers, the previous restrictions remained largely unchanged.

The PSPO came before this Scrutiny Panel before becoming law. A breach of the
PSPO can result in the issuing of a Fixed Penalty Notice (FPN) amounting to £80 which
is a small increase on the previous FPN of £75 for dog fouling related offences.

5.0 Changes to the legislation and performance measures for the service

The last significant change to affect Wolverhampton was the 2017 PSPO and there are no
other significant changes to the legislation on the horizon. A key performance measure for
the dog wardens is speed of response and this is not expected to change.

6.0 The scale of the problems faced in Wolverhampton and any Hotspot areas and
issues

Reports of dog fouling have decreased by around 44% during the last 6 years from 488 in
2009/2010 to 272 in 2016/2017. Over the last 3 years the reports of nuisance dogs have
seen a 32% reduction from 101 to 69 and the dogs reported for collection by the warden
has seen a 30% reduction since 2015; from 470 to 325.

In terms of hot spot areas, the primary data we hold has been kindly provided by
Environmental Services and is shown in the table below for 2017/18. This information is
routinely provided to our enforcement team to conduct patrols.

Page 33
Version [1] Page 3 of 5


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2015/9780111125243

7.0

8.0

9.0

INTERNAL - PROTECT

Ward !\lo: of dog fouling
incidents

St Peter's 28
Bilston East 19
Ettingshall 19
Graiseley 13
Penn 10
Fallings 6
Park
Park 8
Bilston 6
North
Bushbury
South and 6
Low Hill
Wednesfield v
South
Oxley 7
East Park 4
Tettenhall

: 4
Regis
Merry Hill 6
Spring Vale 3
Blakenhall 4
Tettenhall 5
Wightwick
Bushbury 3
North
Heath Town 2
Wednesfield 0
North

Wolverhampton’s enforcement policy compared to other neighbouring authorities

The Black country local authorities produced a combined enforcement and service
standards policy in 2016 which is attached.

An annual breakdown of the income received by the service through fines / fixed
penalty notices (last three years).

2015: £375
2016: £2550
2017: £225

Details of any Orders in place across Wolverhampton and how well they are working
The 2017 Dog Control PSPO is attached. In terms of dog prohibitions from certain

vulnerable areas and the requirement to have dogs on leads, the Council is not aware of
any issues arising that have require%)enforcglzent action. The dog fouling offence has
age

Version [1] Page 4 of 5



10.0

11.0

INTERNAL - PROTECT

been around for well over 20 years and targeted enforcement patrols and awareness
raising campaigns appear to be having a positive impact judging by the number of service
requests recorded in paragraph 6.0.

Communicating details about the services the Council offers

Our main communication platform is the web where people can report a whole range of dog
related matters including: strays, noise, cruelty, dog breeding, pet shops selling dogs.
There are also links to the PSPO, our enforcement policy and Kennel Club, Dogs Trust and
RSPCA websites for more detailed information. We also use twitter and Facebook to
promote activities and stories of interest. Traditional methods of communication are also
permitted.

Initiatives planned for the foreseeable future

In 2017 the Council collaborated with the Dogs Trust, RSPCA, Sunnyside Kennels and
Wolverhampton College to run an event in West Park promoting responsible dog
ownership. A number of microchips were fitted at no cost to the owner or the Council and
the Dogs Trust donated 50 vouchers to be used for neutering and spaying. The event was
well received and we look to repeat it in 2018

Page 35

Version [1] Page 5 of 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Black Country Local
Authorities
Enforcement Policy

.5?:75__- P :E:\"‘-\\.
Metropolitan Borough \'_'D=_J-\.-:|Iy

ooooooooooooooooooooooooo

(% Walsall Council

CITY oF
WOLVERHAMPTON
COWNTEIL

Page 37



Contents Joint Statement of the Chief Executives 3

A Principles of Good Regulation 4

4

Regulators’ Code

C | The Code for Crown Prosecutors 4

D Regulatory Enforcement and Sanctions Act 2008 5

E Conduct of Investigations and Sanctions 5

F Complaints and Appeals 8

G Equal Opportunities 8

H Monitoring and Review 8

Annexes 1 Services within scope of this policy 9
2 Compilaints details for each Authority 10

Black Country Enforcement Policy
Version 1.1 Date January 2016 Page 38




Joint Statement of the Chief
Executives

Name
Signature

Name
Signature

Name
Signature

Name
Signature

The four local Authorities in the Black Country are
responsible for protecting people’s health, safety and
wellbeing as well as the environment and amenities.
They are responsible for promoting economic growth
and employment opportunities.

Key to supporting these objectives is a regulatory
regime that balances support and enforcement.
Providing advice that supports businesses to thrive and
grow through all stages of the business lifecycle, whilst
targeting formal enforcement actions at those
businesses that breach the legislation contrary to our
local needs and priorities and obtaining an unfair
competitive advantage.

Similarly, residents and communities thrive best when
they can enjoy the highest standards of local amenities
and benefit from high levels of consumer protection.

It is recognised by each of the Authorities, as well as by
national government, that business often operates on a
wider basis than a single Authority. Following
initiatives, such as “Better Business For All” and
working with the Black Country Local Enterprise
Partnership, it is recognised that businesses and
communities alike thrive and are supported by
providing consistency and certainty as far as possible.
Therefore, the four authorities have developed a single
enforcement policy

The Black Country’s regulatory focus, through its
various compliance and consenting activities and
functions, is based around four central principles:

e We will ensure that we enforce the law in a fair,
equitable and consistent manner

e We will work to assist businesses and others in
meeting their legal obligations

e Our focus will be on prevention rather than cure,
where appropriate.

o We will take action against those who breach the
law or act irresponsibly

This Policy has been developed in conjunction with key
stakeholders, including local business and enforcement
partners

Black Country Enforcement Policy
Version 1.1 Date January 2016

Page 39 3




Enforcement Policy For Dudley Council, Sandwell Council, City of
Wolverhampton Council and Walsall Council

A. Principles of Good Regulation

The Legislative and Regulatory Reform Act 2006, Part 2, requires the authorities named
above to have regard to the Principles of Good Regulation when exercising a specified
regulatory function’. For local authorities, the specified functions include those carried out
by the services referenced in Annex 1.

We will exercise our regulatory activities in a way which is:

(i) Proportionate — the Regulators’ Code promotes proportionate regulatory activity,
which includes taking appropriate action where non -compliance is identified. The
Public Interest Stage contained in the Code for Crown Prosecutors and can be
accessed at http://www.cps.gov.uk/publications/code_for_crown_prosecutors/ will
always be considered when determining whether it is right to prosecute. Our
activities will reflect the impact of the offending on those living in, working in and
visiting the area and enforcement action taken will relate to the seriousness of the
offence.

(ii) Accountable — our activities will be open to public scrutiny, with clear and accessible
policies, and fair and efficient complaints procedures,

(iii) Consistent — our advice to those we regulate will be robust and reliable and we will
respect advice provided by others. Where circumstances are similar, we will
endeavour to act in a consistent manner.

(iv) Transparent — we will ensure that those we regulate are able to understand what is
expected of them and what they can anticipate in return, and

(v) Targeted — we will focus our resources on higher risk enterprises and activities,
reflecting local need and national priorities and intelligence.

B. Regulators’ Code

The Regulators' Code has been a central part of the Governments’ better regulation
principles for some time now. Its aim is to embed a risk based, proportionate and targeted
approach to regulatory inspection and enforcement

The authorities and services have had regard to the Regulators’ Code in the preparation of
this policy. In certain instances we may conclude that a provision in the Code is either not
relevant, is outweighed by another provision or does not legally apply to some aspects of
regulatory activity. We will ensure that any decision to depart from the Code will be
properly reasoned, based on material evidence and documented.

The Regulators’ Code can be accessed at
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/regulators-code

C. The Code for Crown Prosecutors

When deciding whether to prosecute the authorities have regard to the provisions of The
Code for Crown Prosecutors as issued by the Director of Public Prosecutions.

1 Specified by the Legislative and Regulatory Reform (Regulatory Functions) Order 2007, available at
www.legislation.gov.uk

Black Country Enforcement Policy
Version 1.1 Date January 2016 Page 40 4


http://www.cps.gov.uk/publications/code_for_crown_prosecutors/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/regulators-code
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/regulators-code
http://www.cps.gov.uk/publications/code_for_crown_prosecutors
http://www.cps.gov.uk/publications/code_for_crown_prosecutors
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/

The Code for Crown Prosecutors is a public document that sets out the general principles
to follow when decisions are made in respect of prosecuting cases. The Code sets out two
tests that must be satisfied, commonly referred to as the ‘Evidential Test’ and the ‘Public
Interest Test’:

a. Evidential Test - is there enough evidence against the defendant?

When deciding whether there is enough evidence to prosecute, each Authority will
consider what evidence can be used in court and is reliable. They must be satisfied
there is enough evidence to provide a "realistic prospect of conviction" against each
alleged offender for each offence.

b. Public Interest Test - is it in the public interest for the case to be brought to court?

Each Authority will balance factors for and against prosecution carefully and fairly,
considering each case on its merits. Before deciding that prosecution is appropriate
each Authority will consider the matters which, in the opinion of the Authority, are
relevant and will have regard to the public interest. Their decision will reflect the
impact of the offending on those living and working in the Boroughs.

D. Regulatory Enforcement and Sanctions Act 2008 (‘the RES Act’)

The Regulatory Enforcement and Sanctions Act 2008, as amended, established the
Primary Authority scheme. We will comply with the requirements of the Act when we are
considering taking enforcement action against any business or organisation that has a

primary authority, and will have regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of State in
relation to Primary Authority.

E. Conduct of Investigations and Sanctions

All investigations will be carried out under the following legislation and in accordance with

statutory powers and controls and any associated guidance or codes of practice, in so far
as they relate to the Authorities:

the Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984

the Criminal Procedure and Investigations Act 1996
the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000
the Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001

the Human Rights Act 1998

The Protection of Freedoms Act 2012 (Code of Practice for Powers of Entry and
Description of Relevant Persons) Order 2015

e Data Protection Act 1998
e Consumer Rights Act 2015
e Any other relevant legislation that may be in force

Breaches of legislation found in premises owned or run by the Local Authority will be
treated in accordance with this policy as would a breach in other businesses. In addition,
details of the breach will be brought to the attention of the appropriate head of service
and/or director.

i. Compliance Advice, Guidance and Support

The Authorities use compliance advice, guidance and support as a first response in
the case of many breaches of legislation that are identified. Advice is provided,
sometimes in the form of a warning letter, to assist individuals and businesses in
rectifying breaches as quickly and efficiently as possible, avoiding the need for

Black Country Enforcement Policy
Version 1.1 Date January 2016 Page 41 5



further enforcement action. A warning letter (sometimes called an ‘informal
caution’) will set out what should be done to rectify the breach and to prevent re-
occurrence. We will always make it clear what is a legal requirement and what is
best practice. If a similar breach is identified in the future, this letter will be
persuasive in considering the most appropriate enforcement action to take on that
occasion. Such a letter cannot be cited in court as a previous conviction but it may
be presented in evidence.

The Authorities recognise that where a business has entered into a partnership with
a primary authority, the primary authority will provide compliance advice and
support, and the Authorities will take such advice into account when considering the
most appropriate enforcement action for it to take. It may discuss any need for
compliance advice and support with the primary authority.

Where more formal enforcement action, such as a simple caution or prosecution, is
taken, the Authorities recognises that there is likely to be an on-going need for
compliance advice and support, to prevent further breaches.

ii. Voluntary Undertakings

The Authorities may accept voluntary undertakings that breaches will be rectified
and/or recurrences prevented. The Authorities will take any failure to honour
voluntary undertakings very seriously and enforcement action is likely to result.

iii. Statutory (Legal) Notices

In respect of many breaches the Authorities have powers to issue statutory notices.
Examples of these include but are not limited to: ‘Stop Notices’, ‘Prohibition
Notices’, ‘Emergency Prohibition Notices’, and ‘Improvement Notices’. Such notices
are legally binding. Failure to comply with a statutory notice can be a criminal
offence and may lead to prosecution and/ or, where appropriate, the carrying out of
work in default, the costs of which may be recovered at a later date.

A statutory notice will clearly set out actions which must be taken and the timescale
within which they must be taken. It is likely to require that any breach is rectified
and/or prevented from recurring. It may also prohibit specified activities until the
breach has been rectified and/or safeguards have been put in place to prevent
future breaches. Where a statutory notice is issued, an explanation of the appeals
process will be provided to the recipient.

In the event of non-compliance, and in appropriate case, costs associated with
works in default may be recovered by registering as a local land charge on the
property.

iv.  Financial penalties

The Authorities have powers to issue fixed penalty notices in respect of some
breaches. A fixed penalty notice is not a criminal fine, and does not appear on an
individual’s criminal record. If a fixed penalty is not paid, the relevant Authority may
commence criminal proceedings or take other enforcement action in respect of the
breach.

If a fixed penalty is paid in respect of a breach the relevant Authority will not take
any further enforcement action in respect of that breach. Payment of a fixed penalty
does not provide immunity from prosecution in respect of similar or recurrent
breaches.

Black Country Enforcement Policy
Version 1.1 Date January 2016 Page 42 6



If fixed penalty notices are available, it is the discretion of each Authority to opt to
issue a fixed penalty notice. In some circumstances, in particular where breaches
are serious or recurrent, it may be that prosecution is considered more appropriate
than the issue of a fixed penalty notice.

v. Injunctive Actions, Enforcement Orders etc.

In some circumstances an Authority may seek a direction from the court (in the form
of an order or an injunction) that a breach is rectified and/or prevented from
recurring. The court may also direct that specified activities be suspended until the
breach has been rectified and/or safeguards have been put in place to prevent
future breaches.

Failure to comply with a court order constitutes contempt of court, a serious offence
which may lead to imprisonment.

Authorities are required to seek enforcement orders after issuing some enforcement
notices, providing the court with an opportunity to confirm the restrictions imposed
by the notice. Otherwise, Authorities will usually only seek a court order if it has
serious concerns about compliance with voluntary undertakings or a notice.

vi. Simple Caution

The Authorities have the power to issue simple cautions (previously known as
‘formal cautions’) as an alternative to prosecution for some less serious offences,
where a person admits an offence and consents to the simple caution. Where a
simple caution is offered and declined, the Authority is likely to consider
prosecution.

A simple caution will appear on the offender’s criminal record. It is likely to influence
how the Authority and others deal with any similar breaches in the future, and may
be cited in court if the offender is subsequently prosecuted for a similar offence. If a
simple caution is issued to an individual (rather than a corporation) it may have
consequences if that individual seeks certain types of employment.

Vii. Prosecution

Where the circumstances warrant it and the alternative actions detailed previously
in this policy are considered inappropriate, then prosecution may result. Any
decision to prosecute will take into account the criteria set down in the Code for
Crown Prosecutors and in consultation with the Council’s legal services.

The criteria to be considered will include where relevant: -
a) The nature of the alleged offence;
b) Where appropriate, the previous history of the party concerned;
c) The likelihood of a successful prosecution;
d) The availability and quality of evidence and of any witnesses and their
willingness to co-operate;
e) The public benefit from prosecution and the significance of the case;

Each Authority may prosecute without prior warning or recourse to alternative
sanctions where the circumstances warrant it and the evidence to support the case
is available.

Prosecution will only be considered where the relevant Authority is satisfied that it
has sufficient evidence to provide a realistic prospect of conviction against the

Black Country Enforcement Policy
Version 1.1 Date January 2016 Page 43 7



defendant(s). Due consideration will be given to the availability and compliance with
any relevant statutory defence.

Before deciding that prosecution is appropriate, the relevant Authority will consider
all relevant circumstances carefully and will have regard to the public interest and,
where appropriate, the views of any victim, injured party or other relevant person or
impact on the community.

A successful prosecution will result in a criminal record. The court may impose a
fine and in respect of particularly serious breaches a prison sentence. The court
may order the forfeiture and disposal of non-compliant goods and/or the
confiscation of any assets or profits which have resulted from the breach.
Prosecution may also lead, in some circumstances, to the disqualification of
individuals from acting as company directors.

viii. Refusal/Suspension/Revocation of Licences

The Authorities issue a number of licences and permits and also have a role to play
in ensuring that appropriate standards are met in relation to licences issued by other
agencies. Most licences include conditions which require the licence holder to take
steps to ensure that, for example, a business is properly run. Breach of these
conditions may lead to a review of the licence which may result in its revocation or
amendment. A review of a licence may be considered in addition to or as an
alternative to any other action.

When considering future licence applications, each Authority may take previous
breaches and enforcement action into account.

Our authorised officers will also comply with the requirements of the particular legislation
under which they are acting, and with any associated guidance or codes of practice.

Subject to the needs of an investigation, officers will notify the individuals or business they
are subject to an investigation as soon as is reasonably practicable. The Authorities will
endeavour to make timely decisions about the progress of the investigation and decisions
on the most appropriate action. The person or business subject to any investigation will be
informed of the outcome.

F. Complaints and Appeals

Where any enforcement action is conducted under legislation which contains a specific
appeals procedure, you will be advised of that procedure at the required time.

Should you have any concerns or complaints about the actions of any authorised officers
of the relevant Authorities, then these should be made in the first instance to the manager
of the service or team in question. If the matter is not resolved at this stage, each Authority
has a formal complaints procedure which should then be followed. Details of how to make
a formal complaint to each Authority can be found at Annex 2

G. Equal Opportunities

The Authorities are committed to delivering their operational activities in accordance with
Equal Opportunities Policies and the regions commitment to Equalities. Officers are also
committed to work flexibly to meet service users’ needs as far as practicable, particularly
where those users are from a disadvantaged or vulnerable group.

H. Monitoring and Review

Black Country Enforcement Policy
Version 1.1 Date January 2016 Page 44 8



All proposed enforcement actions shall be assessed against this policy by the investigating

officers concerned in conjunction with line or the service manager and legal services team
of each Authority, where appropriate

Each Authority will monitor performance against this policy.

This policy will be subject to annual review.

Black Country Enforcement Policy
Version 1.1 Date January 2016 Page 45



Annex 1 Services Within Scope Of This Policy

Dudley Metropolitan Borough
Council

e Regulatory Services
o Environmental Health
o Trading Standards
o Licensing
o Waste Enforcement

Sandwell Metropolitan Borough
Council

e Regulatory Services
o Environmental Health
o Trading Standards
o Licensing (excluding taxi
licensing)
e Housing
o Private Sector Housing

Walsall Metropolitan Borough
Council

o Regulatory Services
o Environmental Health
o Trading Standards
o Licensing
o Unauthorised
Encampments
Community Protection
Highway Safety

o O

City of Wolverhampton Council

o Regulatory Services

o Environmental Health
Trading Standards
Licensing
Waste Enforcement
Environmental Crime
Highways Enforcement
Unauthorised
Encampments

O O O 0 O O

Black Country Enforcement Policy
Version 1.1 Date January 2016

Page 46

10



Annex 2 How to Comment or Complaints

Comments and complaints can be made to each authority as detailed below:
Dudley Metropolitan Borough Council

In the first instance, complaints should be addressed to:

Dolores Nellany Public Protection Manager (Food and Consumer Safety) Or
Tim Glews, Public Protection Manager (Environmental Safety and Health)

Dudley MBC

4 Ednam Road
Dudley

DY1 1HL

If the matter is not resolved, further details on the corporate complaints procedure
can be found at: http://www.dudley.gov.uk/resident/your-council/compliments-
comments-complaints/

Sandwell Metropolitan Borough Council
In the first instance, complaints should be addressed to:

Stephen Gabriel

Head of Regulatory Services
Sandwell Council

Court House

High Street

West Bromwich

B70 8LU

If the matter is not resolved, further details on the corporate complaints procedure
can be found at
http://www.sandwell.gov.uk/info/200195/contact_the council/283/feedback and_co

mplaints

Walsall Metropolitan Borough Council
In the first instance, complaints should be addressed to:

Regulatory Services Manager (Business & Compliance) or Regulatory Services
Manager (Community Protection)

Walsall Council
The Civic Centre
Darwall Street
Walsall
WS11TP

If the matter is not resolved, further details on the corporate complaints procedure
can be found at http://cms.walsall.gov.uk/index/tellus.htm

Black Country Enforcement Policy
Version 1.1 Date January 2016 Page 47 11


http://www.dudley.gov.uk/resident/your-council/compliments-comments-complaints/
http://www.dudley.gov.uk/resident/your-council/compliments-comments-complaints/
http://www.sandwell.gov.uk/info/200195/contact_the_council/283/feedback_and_complaints
http://www.sandwell.gov.uk/info/200195/contact_the_council/283/feedback_and_complaints
http://cms.walsall.gov.uk/index/tellus.htm

City of Wolverhampton Council
In the first instance, complaints should be addressed to:
Andy Jervis

Head of Regulatory Services
City of Wolverhampton Council
Civic Centre

St Peter’'s Square
Wolverhampton

WV1 1SH

If the matter is not resolved, further details on the corporate complaints procedure
can be found at https://www.wolverhampton.gov.uk/complaints

Black Country Enforcement Policy
Version 1.1 Date January 2016 Page 48

12


https://www.wolverhampton.gov.uk/complaints

Black Country Local
Authorities
Service Standards

|
"ax Sandwell
mm OanNawe
. Metropolitan Borough Council

5 Walsall Council

SL AL

CITY or
WOLVERHAMPTON
COUNCIL

Page 49



Contents

Statement of the Chief Executives

>

What You Can Expect From Regulatory Services In
The Black Country

N

Areas We Regulate

How We Deliver Our Services

Working With You

Helping You To Get It Right

Inspections And Other Compliance Visits

Responding To Non compliance

I G M m O O W

Requests For Our Services

Our Team

Working With Others

Having Your Say

O N N N o o o o &~ B+

Annexes

How To Contact Us

How To Comment or Complain

12

Black Country Service Standards
Version 1.1 Date January 2016 Page 50




Joint Statement of the
Chief Executives

Name
Signature

Name
Signature

Name
Signature

Name
Signature

The four local Authorities in the Black Country are
responsible for protecting people’s health, safety and
wellbeing as well as the environment and amenities. They
are responsible for promoting economic growth and
employment opportunities.

Key to supporting these objectives is a regulatory regime
that balances support and enforcement. In the context of a
clear set of service standards, providing advice that supports
businesses to thrive and grow through all stages of the
business lifecycle, whilst targeting formal enforcement
actions at those businesses that breach the legislation
contrary to our local needs and priorities and obtaining an
unfair competitive advantage.

Similarly, residents and communities thrive best when they
can enjoy the highest standards of local amenities.

It is recognised by each of the Authorities, as well as by
national government, that business often operates on a
wider basis than a single Authority. Following initiatives,
such as “Better Business For All” and working with the Black
Country Local Enterprise Partnership, it is recognised that
businesses and communities alike thrive and are supported
by providing consistency and certainty as far as possible.
Therefore, the four authorities have developed a single
document outlining their service standards

Section 6 of the Regulators’ Code sets out Government’s
expectation that local authorities will ensure that their
approach to their regulatory activities is transparent. The
provisions of section 6 include an expectation that local
authorities will publish a clear set of service standards,
setting out what those they regulate should expect from
them. This includes their enforcement policy, explaining how
they respond to non-compliance.

Published service standards serve to bring the provisions of
the Regulators’ Code to life for each regulator and are
important for regulators in meeting their responsibility under
the statutory principles of good regulation’ to be accountable
and transparent about their activities.

The Regulators’ Code requires that published service
standards should be easily accessible, clearly signposted,
and kept up-to-date, but does not set out a single required
approach to service standards. It is for each local authority
to determine an approach to service standards that will work
best for those it regulates and itself. The Code expects that
local authorities will engage with those they regulate in
relation to the development of their service standards.

1 Section 21, Legislative and Regulatory Reform Act 2006, available at www.legislation.gov.uk

Black Country Service Standards
Version 1.1 Date January 2016

Page 51 3



http://www.legislation.gov.uk/

Service Standards For Dudley Council, Sandwell Council, City of
Wolverhampton Council and Walsall Council Regulatory Services

A. What You Can Expect From Regulatory Services In The Black Country

This document explains what you can expect of Regulatory Services across the
Black Country Local Authorities’ Regulatory Services. Whether you run a business,
are an employee or a member of the public, we are committed to providing you with
an efficient, courteous and helpful service and this document tells you how we aim to
do that and what standards we will meet.

B. Areas We Regulate

Each Authority delivers the following services

Dudley Metropolitan Borough
Council

e Regulatory Services
o Environmental Health
o Trading Standards
o Licensing
o Waste Enforcement

Sandwell Metropolitan Borough
Council

e Regulatory Services
o Environmental Health
o Trading Standards
o Licensing (excluding taxi
licensing)
e Housing
o Private Sector Housing

Walsall Metropolitan Borough
Council

e Regulatory Services

o Environmental Health

o Trading Standards

o Licensing

o Unauthorised
Encampments
Community Protection
o Highway Safety

o

City of Wolverhampton Council

e Regulatory Services

o Environmental Health
Trading Standards
Licensing
Waste Enforcement
Environmental Crime
Highways Enforcement
Unauthorised
Encampments

O O O O O O

C. How We Deliver Our Services

We make a fundamental contribution to the maintenance and improvement of public health,
quality of life and wellbeing. Our aims are to:

e Protect the public, businesses and the environment from harm
e Support the local economy to grow and prosper
¢ Protect and promote the health and wellbeing of our residents

We determine our activities by assessing the needs of local people and our business
community, and considering the risks that require addressing. We do this through
engagement with a range of groups and organisations, including:

e |ocal communities and local community forums
o elected members

Black Country Service Standards
Version 1.1 Date January 2016 Page 52 4



e the voluntary sector
¢ individual businesses and business organisations
e partners and stakeholders

This is done through the use of complaints, intelligence, data and other information available
to us and our partners and reflecting each Authority’s strategic priorities. In this way we
ensure our resources are targeted appropriately in the light of these local needs and of
national priorities.

We carry out all our activities in a way that supports those we regulate to comply and grow:

o We ensure that information, guidance and advice is available to help you to meet
legal requirements (see Helping you to get it right at section E below).

o We carry out inspections and a wide range of other enforcement activities to check
compliance with legal requirements, and we target these checks where we believe
they are most needed (see Inspections and other compliance visits at section F
below).

o We deal proportionately with breaches of the law as set out in our Enforcement
Policy, including taking firm enforcement action when necessary (see Responding to
non-compliance at section G below).

o We provide a range of services to businesses, including pest control, licences,
registrations, issue of certificates, verification, primary (see Requests for our service
at section H below).

Our services will be delivered in accordance with the requirements of the Regulators’ Code

D. Working With You

In all your dealings with us you can expect, and will receive, an efficient and professional
service. Our officers will:

e Be courteous and polite

¢ Always identify themselves by name in dealings with you, and provide you with
contact details

Seek to gain an understanding of how your business operates

Provide details of how to discuss any concerns you may have

Agree timescales, expectations and preferred methods of communication with you
Ensure that you are kept informed of progress on any outstanding issues.

We recognise that your business will receive advice and inspections from other
organisations, and we will do our best to work with them to ensure that you receive the best
service.

E. Helping You To Get It Right

We want to work with you to help your business to be compliant and successful and it is
important to us that you feel able to come to us for advice when you need it. We won’t take
enforcement action just because you tell us that you have a problem.

Information and guidance on meeting legal requirements is available through the Business
Companion Website www.businesscompanion.info In addition there is a regional Trading

Black Country Service Standards
Version 1.1 Date January 2016 Page 53 5


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/regulators-code
http://www.businesscompanion.info/

Standards Business News Service which is published quarterly on line
http://portfolio.cpl.co.uk/portfolio/ TSBN

Where you need advice that is tailored to your particular needs and circumstances we will:

Discuss with you what is required to achieve compliance

Provide advice that supports compliance and that can be relied on

Provide clear advice that can be easily understood and implemented
Distinguish legal requirements from suggested good practice

Ensure that any verbal advice you receive is confirmed in writing if requested
Acknowledge good practice and compliance.

The Authorities in the Black Country operate the “Home Authority” principal. Any business
based within the area of each Authority and which trades on a regional or national basis may
benefit from a single source of advice in a specific area of legislation for all their business
operations. Further, Sandwell and Walsall, operate the Primary Authority scheme. This
provides that businesses which have been accepted onto the scheme and have signed a
formal Primary Authority Agreement can benefit from Assured Advice. Advice provided
under the Primary Authority Regime is chargeable on a cost recovery basis.

Certain other areas of work undertaken by the Authorities, including licensing regimes,
certain other business advice, and certain metrology services are also chargeable. Details
of each Authority’s fees are available on each Local Authority’s website or can be provided
on request.

F. Inspections And Other Compliance Visits

We monitor and support compliance in a number of different ways including through
inspections, sampling visits, test purchases, advisory visits and complaint investigations.
These visits will always be based on an assessment of risk — we won'’t visit without a reason.

We will give you notice that we intend to visit unless we have specific reason to believe that
an unannounced visit is more appropriate.

When we visit you our officers will:

e Explain the reason and purpose of the visit

e Carry their identification card at all times, and present it on request when visiting your
premises

o Exercise discretion in front of your customers and staff

e Have regard to your approach to compliance, and use this information to inform
future interactions with you

¢ Provide information, guidance and advice to support you in meeting your statutory
obligations, if required

e Provide a written record of the visit.

G. Responding To Non Compliance

Where we identify any failure to meet legal obligations, we will respond proportionately,
taking account of the circumstances, in line with our Enforcement Policy.

We deal proportionately with breaches of the law as set out in our Enforcement Policy,
available on each Local Authority’s website, including taking firm enforcement action when
necessary

Where we require you to take action to remedy any failings we will:

Black Country Service Standards
Version 1.1 Date January 2016 Page 54 6


http://portfolio.cpl.co.uk/portfolio/TSBN

e Explain the nature of the non-compliance

o Discuss what is required to achieve compliance, taking into account your
circumstances
Clearly explain any advice, actions required or decisions that we have taken

o Agree timescales that are acceptable to both you and us, in relation to any actions
required

e Provide in writing details of how to appeal against any advice provided, actions
required or decisions taken, including any statutory rights to appeal
Explain what will happen next

e Keep in touch with you, where required, until the matter is resolved

H. Requests For Our Services

We clearly explain the services that we offer, including details of any fees and charges that
apply.

In responding to requests for our services, including requests for advice and complaints
about breaches of the law, we will:

Acknowledge your request

Tell you when you can expect a substantive response

Seek to fully understand the nature of your request

Explain what we may or may not be able to do, so that you know what to expect
Keep you informed of progress throughout our involvement

Inform you of the outcome as appropriate

Contact details for the services in each authority can be found at Annex .1

We will seek to work with you in the most appropriate way to meet your individual needs. We
can make information available in different formats, and have access to translation and
interpretation services.

If you contact us we will ask you for your name and contact details to enable us to keep in
touch with you as the matter progresses. We treat all contact with the service in confidence
unless you have given us permission to share your details with others as part of the matter
we are dealing with on your behalf or there is an operational reason why we need to do so.
We will respond to anonymous complaints and enquiries where we judge it appropriate to do
SO.

Personal data will be managed in accordance each Authority’s Data Protection Policy, a
copy of which is available on their respective websites or can be provided on request.

I. Our Team

We have a dedicated team of officers who have the appropriate qualifications, skills and
experience to deliver the services provided. We have arrangements in place to ensure the
on-going professional competency of all officers.

Where specialist knowledge is required in an area outside of our expertise we have

arrangements in place, with both neighbouring authorities and other regulatory
organisations, to call on additional resources as necessary.

J.  Working With Others

We work closely with other council services such as Planning and Economic Development
and our aim is to provide a streamlined service to you.

Black Country Service Standards
Version 1.1 Date January 2016 Page 55 7



We are part of a much wider regulatory system within each of the four authorities. We have
good working relationships with other regulators such as West Midlands Police, DEFRA,
West Midlands Fire & Rescue, and this enables us to deliver a more joined up and
consistent service. This includes sharing information and data on compliance and risk,
where the law allows, to help target regulatory resources.

Our officers are familiar with the work of our partners and can signpost you to the advice and
guidance you need. We are members of the Central England Trading Standards Authorities
(CEnTSA); Central England Environmental Health Partnership and other Regional Groups
as well as the Black Country Local Enterprise Partnership.

K. Having Your Say

Complaints and appeals

Where we take enforcement action, there is often a statutory right to appeal. We will
always tell you about this at the appropriate time.

We are always willing to discuss with you the reasons why we have acted in a
particular way, or asked you to act in a particular way. You can contact the manager
of the service which is dealing with this matter.

We manage complaints about our service, or about the conduct of our officers,
through each Authority’s Corporate Complaints Policy. Details can be found at Annex
2

Feedback

We value input from you to help us ensure our service is meeting your needs. We
would like to hear from you whether your experience of us has been good or in need
of improvement. This helps us to ensure we keep doing the right things and make
changes where we need to. We use customer satisfaction surveys from time to time
but we would welcome your feedback at any time. You can provide feedback using
the contact details in Annex 1.

Any feedback that we receive will be acknowledged, considered and responded to.
Developing our services with you

We have a number of groups that we consult with to ensure that we are delivering
our services to meet your needs. We are always happy to welcome new members to
these groups. We currently work with the Black Country Local Enterprise Partnership,
the Black Country Chamber of Commerce, and local business groups in each
authority.

Black Country Service Standards
Version 1.1 Date January 2016 Page 56 8



Annex 1 How to Contact Us

Dudley Council

Trading Standards& Environmental
Health

Directorate of the Urban Environment
4 Ednam Road

Dudley

DY1 1HL

Telephone

0300 555 2345

Sandwell Council

Trading Standards and Licensing

Unit 33 Coneygree Industrial Estate
Coneygree Rd

Tipton
DY4 8XR
Telephone 0121 569 6535
Email trading standards@sandwell.gov.uk

licensing team@sandwell.gov.uk

Environmental Health & Private Sector

Sandwell Council

Housing Court House
High Street
West Bromwich
B70 8LU
Telephone 0121 569 6600
Email ehts _enquiries@sandwell.gov.uk

Walsall council

Trading Standards, Environmental
Health & Community Protection

Civic Centre
Darwall St
Walsall
WS11TP

Telephone Environmental Health

01922 653030

Email Environmental Health

environmentalhealth@walsall.gov.uk

Telephone

01922 653040

Email Trading Standards

tradingstandards@walsall.gov.uk

Telephone Community Protection

01922 653050

Email Community Protection

communityprotection@walsall.gov.uk

Telephone Licensing

01922 653060

Email Licensing

licensing@walsall.gov.uk

Black Country Service Standards
Version 1.1 Date January 2016

City of Wolverhampton Council

Page 57



mailto:trading_standards@sandwell.gov.uk
mailto:licensing_team@sandwell.gov.uk
mailto:ehts_enquiries@sandwell.gov.uk
mailto:environmentalhealth@walsall.gov.uk
mailto:tradingstandards@walsall.gov.uk
mailto:communityprotection@walsall.gov.uk
mailto:licensing@walsall.gov.uk

Trading Standard, Environmental
Health & Licensing

1st Floor

Civic Centre

St Peter’s Square
Wolverhampton
WV1 1DA

Telephone Trading Standards

03454 040506

Telephone Environmental Health

01902 551155

Email all services

customerservices@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Black Country Service Standards

Version 1.1 Date January 2016 Page 58 10



mailto:customerservices@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Annex 2 How to Comment or Complaints

Comments and complaints can be made to each authority as detailed below:
Dudley Metropolitan Borough Council

In the first instance, complaints should be addressed to:

Dolores Nellany Public Protection Manager (Food and Consumer Safety) Or
Tim Glews, Public Protection Manager (Environmental Safety and Health)

Dudley MBC

4 Ednam Road
Dudley

DY1 1HL

If the matter is not resolved, further details on the corporate complaints procedure
can be found at: http://www.dudley.gov.uk/resident/your-council/compliments-
comments-complaints/

Sandwell Metropolitan Borough Council
In the first instance, complaints should be addressed to:

Stephen Gabriel

Head of Regulatory Services
Sandwell Council

Court House

High Street

West Bromwich

B70 8LU

If the matter is not resolved, further details on the corporate complaints procedure
can be found at
http://www.sandwell.gov.uk/info/200195/contact_the council/283/feedback and com

plaints

Walsall Metropolitan Borough Council
In the first instance, complaints should be addressed to:

Regulatory Services Manager (Business & Compliance) or Regulatory Services
Manager (Community Protection)

Walsall Council
The Civic Centre
Darwall Street
Walsall
WS11TP

If the matter is not resolved, further details on the corporate complaints procedure
can be found at http://cms.walsall.gov.uk/index/tellus.htm

Black Country Service Standards
Version 1.1 Date January 2016 Page 59 11


http://www.dudley.gov.uk/resident/your-council/compliments-comments-complaints/
http://www.dudley.gov.uk/resident/your-council/compliments-comments-complaints/
http://www.sandwell.gov.uk/info/200195/contact_the_council/283/feedback_and_complaints
http://www.sandwell.gov.uk/info/200195/contact_the_council/283/feedback_and_complaints
http://cms.walsall.gov.uk/index/tellus.htm

City of Wolverhampton Council
In the first instance, complaints should be addressed to:
Andy Jervis

Head of Regulatory Services
City of Wolverhampton Council
Civic Centre

St Peter’'s Square
Wolverhampton

WV1 1SH

If the matter is not resolved, further details on the corporate complaints procedure
can be found at https://www.wolverhampton.gov.uk/complaints

Black Country Service Standards
Version 1.1 Date January 2016 Page 60

12


https://www.wolverhampton.gov.uk/complaints

wovirtiameron  PUBLIC SPACES
councit— PROTECTION ORDER

(section 59 Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and
Policing Act 2014)

- DOG CONTROL -

Made: xx.xx.2017
Entering into force: xx.xx.2017

AREAS AFFECTED: ALL OF THE CITY OF WOLVERHAMPTON COUNCIL
AREA

WARNING: Failure to comply with the conditions of a Public Spaces
Protection Order is punishable by a level 3 fine on summary conviction
(i.,e. £1,000) (section 66 Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act
2014), or alternatively by a fixed penalty notice (in an amount up to £100)
(section 67 Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014.)

This order has been made following consultation with West Midlands Police and
other interested parties.

IT IS REQUIRED THAT:

1. Dogs be kept on a lead at all times when on footpaths near the major arterial
roads in the City of Wolverhampton Council area as shown on the map
attached hereto marked “Annexe A.” For the avoidance of doubt the roads in
question consist of the roads comprising the ring road (the A4150) and the

following:

o A41; e A4039;

o A449; o A4123;

o A454; o A4124;

o A459; e A4126; and
o A460; e A4139

e A463;

Page 1 of 2

Page 61



. Dogs be kept on a lead at all times when on land at Northycote Farm,
Underhill Lane, Wolverhampton, WV10 7JF.

. Dogs be kept on a lead at all times within a 100 metre radius of the curtilage
of any school in the City of Wolverhampton Council area as listed in the
Schools Establishment List (as updated from time to time.) The Schools
Establishment List Spring Term 2017 is attached hereto marked “Annexe B.”
. Those in control of dogs in the City of Wolverhampton Council area
immediately put dogs for which they are responsible on a lead at the
instruction of any police officer, police community support officer or Council
officer (showing identification.)

IT IS PROHIBITED FROM:

. Allowing any dog in your control to foul on any public footpath or in any public
place within the City of Wolverhampton Council area and failing to remove the
faecal matter immediately.

. Allowing any dog to enter a play area or tennis court listed in the attached
document appended hereto marked “Annexe C.”

Page 2 of 2

Page 62



wowvernameron PUBLIC SPACES
o PROTECTION ORDER

(section 59 Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and
Policing Act 2014)

- DOG CONTROL -

Made by Cabinet 19 July 2017
Entering into force: 1 October 2017

AREAS AFFECTED: ALL OF THE CITY OF WOLVERHAMPTON COUNCIL AREA

ANNEXE A

Page 63



ANNEXE A

A

Page 64



wowvernameron PUBLIC SPACES
o PROTECTION ORDER

(section 59 Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and
Policing Act 2014)

- DOG CONTROL -

Made by Cabinet 19 July 2017
Entering into force: 1 October 2017

AREAS AFFECTED: ALL OF THE CITY OF WOLVERHAMPTON COUNCIL AREA

ANNEXE B

Page 65



£102 wia] Buudg - spuawiysiiqe)s3 [euolesnpg 4o Isi
[12unog ucidweytoa|op Jo K10 sy

Page 66



L¥18SS 20610 ‘auoydojo |

HHZ LAM

|ooydsAIesInupialjjses rew3 uojdweysanjopa

peoy [IBYUI|IIAA JO

yHws 3 ssiy [Jayoesjpes J934S uglo

08Z¥0L ‘NuNn [ooyog ArasinpN playises
611895 20610 Xeq
81 186G 20610 :auoydajaL

drg8 OLAM

3N°AoB" uojdwey JIoAJoM@00UISAISSINUAINGY SN lewq uojdwreanjopp

Angysng

yoo|ng H siiN | 1syoea)peay Bunoy aue Ainqysng

G820l ‘NYN [ooyag AsesinN Aungysng

L89S 20610 :suoydejs | S

110+
[00Y2SAISSINUUO]S|Iq |rewig Spue|pIy 1s

uoiig

Yyuws 3 ssip -layoeajpes J9a4)8 uojdweysanjopn

8L0ZEL ‘NHN |ooyag A1asinpN uojsiig
911865 20610 Xed

HIZ L LAM

911855 20610 :auoydsia] uojdweyIsAop)

PISlysaupapp

|[ooyosAiasinuyiedalollyse rewg Yied alowysy

SALQ sYYSD

Asoe | S sIp -lsyoeajpeay Jooyos AlasinN

612701 ‘NYN yiedq ejowysy

uoneuuou|
Jayang JOEJUOD sjooyog A1osinnN

NMn°Aob’pajsioTspodalfidny yisia asesjd uonsedsu| paysjO j$e3e] Yyl MalA o)

210z uua Budg - syuswys|iqelsg jeuoneanps Jo 3si
119uno) uoidweyssAjop Jo Ao ey




6£92GS 20610 Xed
821855 20610 ‘auoydasja |
[OOUY2SAISSINUIOSPUIM ;lewy 139 FAM
uo)duweyanjops
191504 O SIN :Jayoea)pesH peoy pleipued
€820l ‘NYN |[ooyog Ala@sinp JOSpPUIAA
GE695S 20610 Xe4 %
9Z18SS 20610 :auoydsja] %J
sre z/gh
¥N"AoG ucjdieyIoAIoMD)|00yISAISSINUXIUS0Yd Jrews uoldweytanjopa
lleyuaye|g
Asoe | g sIN -layoesjpesH JoaAg xjuaoyd
182¥01 ‘N¥N (00yos AsesinN xjusoyd
008195 20610 Xe4
#218SS 20610 -duoydaya)
Nré OLAM
[cOyIsAlasInU[liymol rewg uojdweylaaiops
flIH MO
usmo © sIN -18yoea)pesy anuaay syusp
8.¢¥01 :NdN [ooyog A1esinpN |IH Mo
uornjeuLiou|
Jaypung JorjuoH sjooyag Atesinp

£10Z wiia) Buudg — syusuiysijqe)s3 [euonesnpy 4o ysi
Hoaunoy uojdweyssajons Jo K10 ayL




sse|)

AasinN "y 92885S 20610 ‘euoydaje
— SH6 0LAM
fooyog [ooyosjuejuipABID) UM {lew3y uoldWey4aA|opA
Aunuwod IH Mo
uao) O SIN -Jayoeajpesy JUB9S31Y) ||IH MO
86201 ‘NN [00y0g Jueju| arealBRyYAA
¥£G8GG 20610 Xed
sse|D
AlssinpN "oy €£5985S 20610 ‘suoydsjs |
d36 €EAM
jooysg [00yosjuBjUIRIoBISaM flewy uojduwey sajopn
Ajunwwog plalyouiy
ddepl d r sIN :18yoes)pesy iIitH Piayyoul4
¢LEPOL ‘NHN |00YOG JUBJU DIOBISYAN
908855 20610 :xe %
sse|n NV ¥
Riasiny “puj G088GS 20610 :auoydsia | uoydweyan|
uuad
J00Yog |ooUosuejuISTepbulIds lewy 9AU( SSUOISIBAA
Ajunwwo) [ooyog jueju] {UonesIUNWLWON
Aojo4 0 supy Jayoeajpeay pue abenbue 1o}
L0EP0L ‘NUN askeq aolnosay pue) sjepbuudg
L¥68S9S 20610 Xed
SSepo . 138 9AM
Aiasinp “jou G68SS 20610 :suoydalay uojdwetyaniop
POOAA Jleyuajye]
|o0yag pajjonuo }N°A0D UOJdWBYISA|OM@M]|O0OLDSIUBIUIUIINYDISHYD Jlelds aueT meys
Arejunjop J00Y2g
abre AA SSIN :Jayoea)peaH fsasinN pue jueju| puejbug
COEPOL ‘NdN 10 YyaInyo ‘yoinyg isuyn
uoneulou|
Jaypny JoelUOD S]00Y98 Juejuj

110z uwua] Buudg — syuswysjiqeys3 jeuoneanpy o Isi
[1punog uodureylaajops jo Ao eyl




Page 70

9€98G6G 20610 Xeq

\cww:__/.._w m_w__.n_.w GE£88GG 10 G£98GS 20610 ‘auoydsja
[ooyog Jlewy :QEENHMMw%
fuunued sojeyd H SIN :jlooyog jo peaH anuany v_w%,”%ﬂ
00€¥0} ‘NYN |00YDS JuejU| PIBLPOOAA
:o_umwzﬁ._ﬁw__u Joejuo) Sj00L2g Juey|

2107 wua) Buudg - sjuswiysiiqe)s3y [euoyesnpg Jo isp
l1ouno) uoydweyarjop Jo Ao ayy




€€68SS 20610 Xed
0€68SS €0610 -auoydsja]
dré 0LAM
[ooyos Jlewy uoldweysarjops
Auniuwoy INH Mo
wiajpay S SIW :jayoeajpesH anuany leakpoon)
66201 ‘NHN |00Yog Jolunp aAaealBIYAA
0.88SS 20610 :ouoydaja |
Va8 EAM
|ooyog 3N"AoD UcidweyIaAjom@Iooyosioiunispuedn rewq uojdweyJanop,
Ajuniuwo) PIuyouIL4
UHWIS-ISISAaAA S SN Jsyoes)pea JSOAA peOY plalyouly
CeEPOL ‘NN |ooyag Jolunp spueidp
2188SS Z0610 Xed ™~
()
: NV ¥,
01889G 20610 suoydsis] uojdweyan]
uuad
[o0yog Jlews BALI(] SSUOJSIBAA
Aunwwo) [00YOg Jolunp (uoleajuNWIWO)
supdoH r sIN -JayoesjpesH pue abenBue 10}
€0EYOL :NMN B3Iy 90Jn0say pue) sjepbuludg
0489S 20610 xXeH
00/8SS ¢0610 :auoydsja) 978 9AM
uojdweylanopp
|[o0Yyog pajjosucy lews POOAA [feyuaps |
Aleiunjop peOY 9]02pPOOAA
lamolg S SIN :Jayoeapesy |ooyag Joiunp puejbug
99€Y0L ‘NYN 40 yaunyo ‘yainys Jsuyn
uoIeuLIOU|
Jeyung 19BJUOD sjooyass Jounp

2102 uua) Buudg — syuswiysijqe)s3 Jeuonesnpy Jo s
l1ounoy uojdweylaajops Jo Ao ayy




Page 72

/€85G 20610 Xeq

GE88GS 20610 auoydsja)
OV PAM
[ooyog jooydsiojunipaijpoom jlew3 uojdweysanjopn
Aunwwon uuad
uojuep N SIN ‘looyas jo peay SNUaAY PIBYPOOAA
66201 ‘NYN |[ooyog solunp playpoopA

uojyeuLIou|

Jayun4 jorUOND sjooyog Jolunp

4102 uus | Buudg ~ spuswiysyjqe}ss [eucpeanpy o Jsi
119unog uojdureyseAjop Jo A19 8y




sse| ¥£28GS ¢061L0 Xe
AissinpN “Jouj ;
|00YoS 0€28SS 20610 :suoydsja ) AG8 OLAM
Aunwwon JNACD UCIdWETIBAICM@ATeWdIIGAINGYSnq Jlews uojdweyIaA|opn
UOSE > SIN “19oes)pea aueT sbuled plO
06Z¥01 ‘NYN Jooyog Arewiid jiH Ainqysng
0698SS 20610 ‘suoydsja) AHO ¥LAM
SpUe|pIy JSSpA
|ooyog pajjouon rew3 uojs|ig
Areyunjop Jaosal) Aueqyy
apusn 9 I :layoesjpeay |ooysg Aewld
G0EOEL ‘NYN puejbu3 jo yainyo uojsjg
BGS8SS 20610 X I~
sse|n )
Kissin “fou 95585G 0610 :auoydsia =
)shi] Awapeoy }n"Aob"uoldweyISA|OM@D|O00YISATEUIax 00IGAIISq lew3g 0
mny 1eH Auad ZN8 OLAM
(¥102'%0°10) BWSAYD v SI :18yoea)pesH uojdwieyanop
Awapeoy ETIBEY & nyJapun
ASpiUIH 1IN :|ooyos jo peaH SNUaAy Saloeuaaln)
8590%1 ‘NdN Jooyog Arewnd yooighuag
SSE|D
Aigsiny jou| 01.48SS 20610 :auoydsja]
AHO EAM
[ooyog [cCydsSAIeWILIAYO0juEq rewy uojdweylanonn
Aunwwon sp|al4 uuad
leleg H sy “layoeajpes J9a4)18 uo)sy
26LCEL ‘NN [ooyas Alewnd yoojueqg
uoneulo|
JBypng joeju0n sjooyoss Aiewid

2102 wia ] buudg - sjuswiysiiqeys3 [euonesnp3 Jo 1si
[1ouno) uojdwieyiaajops Jo Ao 2y




SSE|D

Alasinp puj
172 LIAM
OVIN 08998 20610 suoydsje) uojdweylanjopp
IIXX uyor adod plslisaupapn
(51L0Z°€0°LO) “3N"ACB UCJdWEISA|OM@D)| 00UOSAIBLIIANSHLISNAI03 ‘lewg Ned aowysy
Awspeoy aNUaAY alowysy
ybnos-uapjoH 7 SIN “layoeajpeay Awapeoy
B69LLFL ‘NYN Aewind anoyen nsuyg sndion
L8G8GS 20610 Xe4
§/586S 20610 :suoydaja
Nre SAM
[ooyog fews uo)dweylaniop
Aunwwon Heyuayal
Aydiny I ‘layoea)pesy BNUBAY 18)say0)
LLEPOL 'NHN looyog Atewd ajebaigl)
80995S 20610 Xed N~
Sse|D Q
AsssinN “jouj 909955 20610 ‘euoyds|a] SHE ENGR
uojdweyJangaA
[ooyag ltewy Hoiosfsen
Ajunwwog JUB9S3ID [[IUPUIA
leAQ v JW 18yoea)pesH [ooyog Arewnd (|A 1o} eany
LLEFOL ‘NHN $92IN0SaY pue) Yoioajse
1819GG 20610 Xed
SSE|D
Mesinp “jou| 98996 C0610 :auoydsja | (looyog Aewnyd
Ao|xQ se umouy Alsnoinaid)
(AL E )| rew3 H16 0LAM
(L1L0Z'€0°10) uojdweyIaAlop,
Awapeoy uojuag ¥ SIy -layoeajpesy aue] Ainqusng
ITTES T peoy uody
£€282F1 ‘NiN Awspeoy aue Ainqysng
uoneuroU|
i8yying Joejuon sjooyog Alewng

L10Z wie] fuudg - sjuswysijqels3 [euopeanpg Jo )si
[1Punog uojdwieysaajops Jo A1 syl




‘auoyds|a
ysni | Awepeoy 66885G 20610 yasjaL
Aw_nm@hmo_‘:w% YN"AoG UOdWeyIBA| oM@ 0o yoSATR LI ediSed rewg Saz LAM
Awspeay uojdweyJsajopn
1sano H sy :19ydes)pesH peoy uo)buiocH
GEEFOL ‘NYN Auwispesy yied jse3
6119SS 20610 Xeq
sse|n
AasinN oy L1966 20610 :auoyds|a )
(1snu >Ewﬂ__umo< lew3
-NA lleH Auad) HNO 9AM
(810Z'50°10) BWABYD Vv SIN “layoeajpesn uojdweyIaA|opA
Awapeay aAlnoaxg sueay SIOWHYAA
Angsvy g Jn :JJooyag Jo pesH BNUAAY ||BJsung
649¢vL ‘NdN Jooyog Arewud [IIH lieysung
882865 Z0610 Xe ~
sSe|D )
Alesiny "pul ¥8¢8SG 20610 auoyds|a | X1i 8
uojdwieysan
|[ooYyog RTEE] plojepusd
Alunwwon 9)e)s3 §8]009A0(]
moppag o ssipy ‘18yoea)pesH JJEITETNY|
0SE¥0L -NYN [ooyog Alewd s8)028A0(Q
uofjeviaolu|
Jayung JorJUoH sjooyss Arewnid
611895 0610 Xe
8//8GS 20610 rauoydalfa)
aatl LiAm
[ooyag RIEE ] uojdweylanjopp
Alunwiwod Plalysaupap
Aqieq g si | Jayoea)peaH bunoy peoy Baj Ny
6LEP0L INMN [ooyog Alewid unoouiz.g
uoneuwuloju]
Jayyng JOrRUOD sjooyasg Alewud

210z wia) Buudg — sjuawysi|qels3 jeuonesnpg jo 3sin
112uno2) uoidweyiaa|op Jo Ao ay L




SupdoH I 1ayoeajpea aueT sbuie4 p|o
P6Cr0OL ‘NuN looyog Arewnd yed sbujje
89884GG 20610 Xed
9988GS C0610 :auoydsia |
rewy
1sni] Awspeoy
DN |1eH uois|3 uosAeio) ¥y IN “1ayoes)pesy NN9 0LAM
(S1'01°10) aAlInoax3 uojduueyan|opn
Awspeoy Agjioqg 7 siy Jayoesjpesn sSasnoypio4
ojeossy peoy ployels
6rECL ‘NYN |ooyog Alewd jjeH uols|g
SSE|D G9.86G 20610 uoydayja )
fasiny “jou]
|[ooyosAtewndispiaayjpIempa ewg
jsni| Awapeoy gae LIAM
NW |IleH uols|g uosAelo) 3 IN -1ayoes)peay uojdwey anesA
(9L0Z°Z1°10) aANoaXg ployssupagA
Awapeoy Algjloq 1 sIN Jayoesjpeay Jseg aue asnoH EQ@
aJeInossy |jooypS
8LESEL ‘NYN Alewiu Jop|3 auy) pyemp3
uopeuLIopu|
Joyung yoejoD sjooyasg Alewd
ADZ LAM
|ooyog 209856 20610 Xeq uo)dweysanjopn
Aunwwon #098SS 20610 :auoyds|a| PEOY |[BYUIJIIAMA HO
}N°A0D’ UojduleyIsAjoMp)|ooydsATetlidpjaijises ‘llew3 peoy fiay0n
creErOL ‘NdN AeH g supy JayoeajpesH Jooyag Aiewind pieseg
Sse|D)
Alasinp oy
UOIJBULIOU]|
Jayung JoRjuo) sjooyog Aewd

£10Z uua) Buudsg - syuswysijqe)s3 [euoyeonpg 4o 3si
(19unod ucidweysaajop Jo Ao oy




Page 77

9/£85S 20610 R
Sse|D
Assiny -ouj GLE€8SS Z06L0 :suoydsja]
[o0Yos ‘|rews NE8 0LAM
Alunwwon uojdweylanjops
uoljeuLIoju|
Jayun4 JorjuoYH sjooyag Arewad

£10Z uud Buudg - sjuswiysiqe)s3 euoneoNnps Jo Isi

I1ouno) uojdwerdsaiops jo A0 ayy




sse|)

AJasinN ‘jouj
(IsniL Awepeay €G886S 20610 Xed
-Inp s,uipep 1s) 1688GS 20610 :auoydsja)
(9102'+0°10) {00YISAIeLULIdaAO) ;lews ZHL ZAM
Awepeay MET 7 SIN :1ayoeg)peay uojdweysanopn
aAnsaxg peoy eluopsjed
ZSEP0L NHN sineq g9 1IN :Jayoea)pesy [ooyog Atewd anolsy
O9¥/8GS 20610 Xe
sse|n
AiasinN "jou 611896 20610 :auoyds|a]
1o0y2g Jrew3 ANy 2AM
Aunwiwon uojdweysanopp
BSEN S SIN :1ayoea)pesy IIH Aajasieln
2¢0EPOl ‘NHN looyog Arewil Asjesiels
L€48GS 20610 xed 0
sse|D) N~
Aiasinn “jou| 0€/28GG 20610 :auoyds|a %J
|ooyos SR 02 }1edUIOyIPI0b@SIJ0 Irew3 135 Smm,
Auunwuwon uojdweylanjopp
ape|qasoy r sip -1ayoeajpeay peoy pleps
LEEROL ‘NAN Arewud yied uloyjpjo
SSE|D
Aiasiny “pouj 212896 20610 Xed
G/286S 20610 :auoydsjay
1sni] Awapeoy
BN S,UILeR 1S AN"AQD UOJdUIEYISAIOME) 00 YIS ELIIAMBIAD[O Jlrews V. PLAM
(S10Z'€0°10) meT 7 sI| 1aydesjpesy Spue|pIy 1S9
Awsapeoy aAhoaXxg uojsjg
sined S JN -layoes)peay peoy sjepsuo
SLLrL 'NHN |ooyog Alewud malp piei
uolnjeuuoju|
J8ylng JoRIU0D sjooyog Alewld

L10Z wia] Buudg - sjuswysi|qelsy [euonesnps joisn
l1ouno) uojdweylaajop Jo Ao ayg




1G68SS 20610 Xed
SSE|)
Aiesinp “oul 0G68SS 20610 :auoydala |
Zd9 vAM
[ooyog 3¥n°Ack uojdiueliaA oM@ |00USSATewIdp[BSaue lewg uojdweyanjop
Ajunwiwon ploysaue
uosulj|oy Z SI -1ayoea)peay SNUBAY UBLUMBN
L2€¥0L ‘N¥N Jooyog Alewlld piaysaue
8.685S 20610 Xed
SSE|D
Assinp “pou 1/168SS ¢06.0 :auoydsia] ad. vinm
SpPUB|pIIN 1S9
jooyog Jrewy uojsiig
paply Arejunjop joaug Josel
AIeNOIN D SIN -layoeajpean jooyog
82E¥01 ‘NYN Aewnd aljoyjen Ayuu) AloH
6¥178.8 20610 Xe4 o)
N~
Auedwod 0v8.8 20610 :auoydsjal )
Awspesy 2
BINA S1joYIeD 3N"AOK UOJdWIELJaA| OMD)| 00 OSATEWIIGAIESOIA[OY ;rewg o
[11XX uyor adod SEZ IAM
(5102'€0°10) lIessnYy X JW uojdwWeyIaAopn
Awapeoy -1ayoea)pesy BNUBAY UBUDOIH
X0 Y SIN dANDaX3 Auwopeay
684171 ‘NN ;|looyog jo peayH Aewind anoyjen Aresoy AjoH
[o0y2s
Masinp ‘jouj LG28GG 20610 Xed
sn1) Awapesy , 05.8GS 20610 rauoydata
N Jouepy 3N"AOD UO}dBYISA[OME)|00YISATeIdaNUSA LI rew3 AdS PAM
(910Z°Z1°10) HID V SIN -18yoesipeaH uojdwieysn|opn
Awspeoy SAlINoaX] playsaue]
Asjole 3 I :Jayoes)pea anuany ((IH
9ZEP0L ‘NYN Awapesy anusay |IIH
uoneuloU|
Jayyung JoRUOY sjooyosg Alewug

L10Z uua | Bupdg — spusiiys)|qels3 [euonesnp3 jo Isiq
112uno) uojduseyleAjop Jo A ayl




19.8GG 20610 Xe4
sse|D
AesinN “jouj 09.8SS 20610 :duoydaja |
[ooyag ewq dNo eAM
Alunwwon uojduwieyJanjopn
auel SJN -JayoesipesaH Kepp uadsy
YEEPOL ‘NHN looyog Atewlg ajepLuapy
SSe|D 6S919GG 20610 Xe
AasinN "joy)
09¥9S6G 20610 auoydeje]
Isni| Awapeoy ON6 ¥LAM
BNy Jouep jooyasAtewidiouet ewy SpuB|pPI 1S
(910Z'20°10) uolsiig
Awapeoy WO v SIN Jayoealpesy Asjason
aAlnoexg peocy __m_._mmcﬁ.w_
888L¥L ‘NN [ooyog Alewid Jouep
€4589G 20610 XeH Q
sse|) 2
AasinN “ou| 0.5849S 20610 auoydaja | o
HdO #LAM
[ooyog -lewsy SPUE|PIN 1Sap
Aunwwon uols|ig
Nno9sg 4 sIN :Jayoes)peaH Joaug |edeysn
SLEPOL ‘NYN [ooyos Arewlid ajepxo
986895 20610 xXe
sse|D
Kissiny "oy G868GS 20610 Buoyde|at
a31 LIAM
[ooyos ewy uojduwreyuanjopp
Aunuwwon Plausaupapi
10113 M SN -Jayoes)pea sNUaAy poomyoelg
0ZEPOL ‘N¥N looyog Atewd sjmouy BuoT
uoneuMoU|
Jayyng joeju0n sjooyag Alewisg

2102 wua Bundg — syuswiysiiqeis3 [euonesnpg Jo isi
unod uojduieyleAjopn o Ao ay)




026855 20610 Xed
L168SS 20610 auoydsja | 00ZC LLAM
uojdweyanjopn
|[ooyag [rews PI2SAUPSAA
Aunwiwon yied alowys
plouly S I\ :1ayoes)pesy ahuaay :m%
Lrer0L ‘NYN looyog Aewld mOpesiy Ygm
€2.1866 20610 Xed nnau
ol
G1/8GG 20610 :auoydela |
(3sniL
[euonyeonpg ewid yiedpoomypiou ‘lewg
}ed poOMYUON) Sas oLAM
(510Z°1L0°1L0) SO © SIN r1ayoeajpeaH uo)dweysanjopn
Awspeoy 9AIIN2aXg Ainqusng
90Ud W SIN :|ooyog 0 peaH peoy poombuon
8P9l¥L ‘NYN [ooyog Alewd sxJed pOOMyLON
006¥SS 20610 :auoydaja
Hd0 EAM
rewq uojdweysanopp
100425 9al4 Joans uppoug jesls)
|elueuq H JN :layoes)peaH uojdweyssAjops
¥ZLBEL ‘NHN |[ooyog Alewilnd wexysiN
uojjeurioju|
Jayung JoRIuU0D sjooyosg Alewnd

£10Z wua] Buudg - syuswysijqeis3 [euonesnp3 4o isi
Haunos ucydweysasjop Jo Ao ayy




SSE|D €¥58GS 20610 Xe
AasinN “Jouj
8€98GS 20610 -auoydsja)
}sni] Awapeay jooydsArewndjeqAied ‘llewg
N lleH Ausd L1HE LLAM
{£102°10°10) BLWS3YD W SIN -layoeajpea uojdweylaa|opp
Awepeoy anNnsaxy ploysoupapi
IYo¥ ¥ SSIN :JayoeajpesH BNUBAY UBLL|OT)
0.86€1 ‘N¥N Jooyag Arewind jjeH Auad
1298SS 20610 ‘uoydsja)
A
jcoyasAiewndpjaipie lewg 00
gH9 /AN
|ooyos “Bulumog M UIN -ISydES)pESH uojdweyISAIR
Ajunwwo) aAndaxg PRy B
20ld I SIN ;jooyasg Jo pesH 198118 yoowwig
62E¥0L -NYN |ooyog Aiewnd pisipied
92E€8SS 20610 -Xed
22€8GS 20610 ‘auoyda|a|
|ooyosAiewidssoldsiawe ewy 406 9AM
1shu) Awapeoy uojdweyIanjopa
N JleH uois3 uosAeIo) M I “Jaysesipesy lleyuapa |
(9L0Z%0°10) aAnosxg PEOY SieuLBpUIA
Awapeoy Asjjog 1 I -Jaydespeay | [ooyos Alewlld (uonedIUNWIWOY
9Jeossy © abenbue Jo) rary
60€r0L ‘“NiN $90IN0saY pue) sso.in) siswjed
uopeuroju|
Jeyng joeuon sjooyos Alewlid

2102 wie], buudg - sjuswiysijqe)s3 [euonesnps o Isi
iPuUnoy) uojdwieydAIopA Jo AN By




Auedwon 2019GG 20610 Xe4
Awapeoy
N dloyed 081866 20610 :auoydsta]
Aies|D doysig ZHL 2AMW
(€10Z°20°10) ‘lew3 uojduleyanjopn
Awapeoy peoy eluopale
diisuey r sip :pesH sAipnoex3g Awapeoy amcﬁ
0086€1 -Nun oljoye uyor pue ey gg |
06G9SS 20610 Xe4 nnau
SSen) Q.
Aesiny “jou 68595G 20610 :auoydaja)
as9 rAM
|[ooyog AN Aob uo)dweysaiom@)|ooUasAIelda[eAbUlds rewg uojdweyanopp
Awunwwon plewied
ung 0 4N :1ayoesjpeay JUB2SAID YHOM[IUSH
0EEPOL ‘N¥HN |ooyog Arewlld ojep Buudg
6098GS C0610 Xed
ssen
Assin “ouj 8098S5S 20610 -suoydals |
SN9 0LAM
|ooyog Jn°Aob uolduwielisajom@Adetliid s)ebay el rewg uojdweyJanjonn
Aunwiwon AsxQ
suleH r S W :layoea)pesy 9s0|0) djebayey
POEFOL ‘NN [ooyog Aewind ajebeyey
uojeuLIo|
Jayng JoRJIUOD sjooyag Atewd

L10Z ua] buudg - suawysiiqe)sy [euopyesnp3 yo 3si
[12unoD uojdwieydaajops Jo Ao eyl




$2S8SS ¢0610 -Xe
SSe|D
AissinN "pu| Z258SS 20610 :auoydsja] H0 8AM
uodWBLISA|OAN
|0oYoS pa||0Ju0n ewg sueay aJOWNYAA
Aejunjop JoaIS ueWw|o)
uosdwoy] 7 sip Jsyoeajpeay [ooyog Alewlid
90821 ‘NYN puejfu3 Jo yoinyy s,maipuy IS
228855 20610 Xe4
SSe|D : 442 L LAM
Alasinp ‘jou] 5¢884S 20610 ‘ouoydate s uojdwieyanjopp
|lew3 playsaupapy
|00Y2S PIIOSUOY SO H SIW Jayoesjpesy Ned alowysy
Arejunjop BAlN2axg 950[D S.Ueqn3s
sauop r SIN :[ooY2s JO peaH [ooysg Aewy
LOEFOL NN puejbuz jo younyo m.:mo__<m,w
@
sse|D o
AtasinN "jou|
(Ovno9o9)
Auedwon LP9GS 20610 Xe
Awapeoy HHO 9AM
BNy aljoyien L#9GS 20610 :auoydsja] uoldweYJSA|OAA
Kea|n doysig abpugmaN
(€102 20°1L0) wispede|nedpuels)adss ‘jlews peoy uIapioH
Awapeay 3S0|D WSpIoH
awAg r sIN sledioulld | AsasinN pue Awapeoy Alelllid
F686C1 -NHN oloyjeD |ned pue Jajed SS
uojjeLuIou|
Jayun4 Joejuon sjooyos Arewlig

110Z wia) Bundg — spuswuysyiqejs3 [euoneonpy 30 1si
Isunos) uojdweyea|op Jo Ao oyl




}sni} pue|bug

[enuad puelbug 8¥885G 20610 :suoydaja ]
JO yainyo 1a0 9AM
(710Z°£0°10) [rews uojdweyanopn
Awapeoy peoy j9bed
uojeq q sIn Jayoea)pesH Awspesy Lewud
GGEOFL ‘NYN pue|bu3 jo yoinyo s.opnris
SSE|D %
Aasiny jouj D)
9G88GS 20610 Xed4 nnau
1sni] Awapeoy o
N 30 GG88SG 20610 :auoydaja o156 FAM
s mallojoypeq 18 uojdwieyIaAjopn
(910Z'60°1.0) [ooyosAleludsMaLIo[OUHeqIS ‘lew3 uuad
Awapeoy peoy As|bpeg
Juay| Y SIN :Jayoeajpeap |jooyoag Alewlly puejbug
6SEF0L ‘NN JO Yyainyd s mawojoyueq is
8€685S 20610 xXe

SSE|D
AasinN “jou GE68SS 20610 :auoydsta | MNS 0LAM
uojdweysanjopn
|[ooyog 3N° 03" MpROD@a510SAUOLE}S ‘lewg sasnoypio
paply Alejunjop peoy pioyels
siaeq | sIp -1ayoeajpea jooysg
Y.e¥0L ‘NHN Alewid aljoyen s Auoyjuy is

uopeULIOU|
Joypung Joejuon sjooyss lewng

2102 wia) Buudg - s)uswiysijqe}sy Jeuoneanpy o s
l1ounos uojdweylaajops Jo Ao ay)




SSe|D

Aasiny jou]
Auedwon
Awapeay 6.880€ Z061.0 xe
NN dloyed suoudale
(S5102°€0°10) N A0D Lio}dWEyISA0M@D)|00 JoSATBLULASABUS lewg uojdweysaAjops
Awapeoy peoy yoouuen
[1essy M JIN Jayodealpea Awepeoy
L28LPL NYN SAlndeXs Aewnd ooyjeg sliep 1g
SSe|D
fesiny “jou ¥6.09G 20610 xed ©
. Sd8 ¥1/o
1sn1) Awopesy 99685G 20610 :auoydala ] SpUEPI 1
BN s ulle 1S looyosSATewdsuinew]s rewy :oﬁm@
(5102°€0°10) . Asjpag
Awspeay MeT 7 sIp :layoesjpesaH peOY S9B(EA
SAlInJaxy jooyog Atewld
GZ8l¥l ‘N3N UNEA T SIN |OOUIS JO PESH | pue|Buz jo Yyounys s uipep 1S
SEYOSG 20610 RCE|
SSB|D
AiasinN | ¥EP9SS Z0610 -auoyds|a| AVE ZAM
uoldweylanjopp
|jooyog lewg [freyuaxye|g
paply Asejunjop WInog 19ang yied
ueuuaID ¢ SIW iayoeg)pesy |[ooyog Alewld (paply)
¢LEP0L ‘NUN pue|bu3 jo yoinyy sajn7318
uoneuLIoU|
Jayung JoRjUOCD sjooyog Aieulid

4102 wua] buudg — sjuswuysijqels3 |eucyesnpy Jo is
[1ounog) uojdwetaajopn jo Ajo ayg




GCO8SG 20610 :Xe4
SSe|)
fiasinp “jou| 1 2985S 20610 :auoydaja ] HUNS 6AM
uojdweyaajopn
[ooyog rewy plojapuad
papiy Aejunjop Juaasal) yuomswug
SLLIOW [ SSIN :1ayoeajpea |ooyog Alewind paply
¢8EPOL ‘NN pue|buz Jo yaunyo sinedis
£619SG 20610 Xe
SSe|D)
Assinp oyl LS¥ISS 20610 :uoyds|a| odl LIAM
uojdweylanop
[ooyos }N"A0D"UojduweyIaA|OMD)00YISATeIIdS DL ed])S ‘llewg plausaupspi
peply Alejunjop aue Agjesieln
BIZUOW H SIN :1ayoeajpeay looyas
LBEYOL NN Aewud sloyie) sypouedas
L¥88SG 20610 -xed Q
o
G¥88GG 20610 auoyds|a ] 4V6 9/AA
uojdweysanjopn
[ooyos )N°AOD" uojdueyIaA|oM@) 00 yDSATelILdaoS[SEDILLIS rews lieyuapa |
paply Atejunjop Joang 1amon
UOSHOE( Y SIN :18yoea)pesH |[ooyog Alewld pepiy
F8EFOL ‘NN pue|bu3 jo yainyy s|seyoly 1S
sse|n
Aesinp ‘jou] 04£9G6G 20610 Xed
OV Jjotied 89€94G 20610 auoydaje] 1L eAM
Aeas|n doysig uojdweyanjop
(€1L02°20°10) [ooydsAieLulidaIS[aBYIILS Jlew3 IH Auspy
Awepeoy suapJles) pioje
9|EHON S SIN ‘redipunyg AsasinN pue Awapesy
€686€1 NN Krewud oljoyied s jeeyolly i1
uoneuio)
Jaypung JorjU0n sjooyoag Alewg

L10T wie ], buudg - sjuswiysijqeys3 |euopeanps jo )si

11ouno? uojduwieysaAjop J0 AD oyt




1 £885G ¢0610 xe4
SSE|D
Aissinp “jou 028855 20610 :auoydaja |
11€ €LAM
[ooyog ‘llew3 uojdweyssajopn
Aunmwon oj|oqouod
aoung A SSI -Jayoeajpesy peoy |IIH
£ZEP0L INYN |ooyog Alewlid yjeaH molg
sse|) L6¢8SS 20610 xe4
Aasiny jou)
£9686S 20610 :auoydaja) 1€ LIAM
[ooyog uojdweyanjopp
Jm__o::oo ‘lew3 PISljsaupapp
BJUN|OA peoy xopep
SO H SIN :18yoes)pea aANdaxg |[ooyog Alewld
€9¢P0L ‘NYN pue|bul jo yainyy sewoy | 19
Auedwon 0
Awapeay o0]
N dlloyjed £988S5G 20610 Xed AMV9 /@0
Aies)5 doysig 298865 Z0610 auoydaja | coasmsww__o@
Pty Pl @ad
Amrmw:wmmwﬁ HN"ACE UOIAIIEI9AIOMD)SESIoHS lewsg pEoY SUIel
diisueH  SIN :1ayoea)peay aAndaxg Awapeoy
£686¢E1 ‘NYN Arewld sjoype) s.eseis] Js
SSE[D eV889S 20610 Xed
Aasiny "juj
0%88SS 20610 :auoyds|a] gd0 0LAM
|0oyog uojdweysanjopp
pajjciiuon |[ooyosArewnidsuayds)s)s rewg umo| yjesH
Atejunjop peOy USPOAA
bulumoQq aA IN :JayoeajpesH |ooyog Alewilg
L9EYOL ‘NYN puejbug jo yoinyg susydelg is
uojjeuuoyu|
JaYying joejuo) sjooyag Arewad

2107 wie] Bundg - syuswysijqe)s3 jeuonesnps 4o 1)
Naunog uojdweysaAlop Jo Ano ay)




SSE|D

AissinN ‘pu 18285G 20610 ‘auoydsla
N7 PAM
f jooyag [rewrg uojdueylanjopn
JuNWwIwoo uuad
Aausa4 4 siy -laydes)pesH peOY S2UOJSIBAA
PPEVOL ‘NEN |ooyog Alewllld ssuojsiepp
¥688GS 20610 Xed
SSe|D
fasinp oy £6685SG 20610 :auoydsja |
AHd9 FIAM
[o0Yyog BlllIdsIalia rews SPUBPIA 1SSAA
Ajunuiwon uojs|ig
12000 q I :1ayoea)peay aue muzﬁ
8LEXOL ‘NN |jooyas Alewild s.ia)
()
sse|D nnau
AasinN “jou] o
01¥8SS 20610 -auoyda|a | an0 0LAM
jooysg uojduweLaAopn
pajjouo) rew3 abe||IA Jied maN
Areyunjop peoy pioj6uo]
UOHSAA IN IIN -Jaysesjpes |[ooyog Aewd
B6EVLEL ‘NUN pue|Bu3 jo younyo Ajui
G¥189S 20610 Xed
SSe|D
fissiny ou £9%9GS 20610 auoydaja |
H39 #IAM
[ooyos elilidume;mo)s liewy Spue|pIy 1S
Aunwiwon uoisiig
ueybnea g sIiy :1ayoeajpesH SNUBAY Hled usalc)
Z1EPOL “NHN [ooyag Alewild umejmols
uopewou|
J9yNyg 52251 11 (e T sjooyog Alewd

110z uus) Bupdg — sjuswysiiqeysy [euoneanpg Jo 1sr
[ounog) uojdweysaajop Jo Ao ayl




sse|n

Aasinp ‘ouj LGE9GG €0610 Xe
(ysna] 0888SS 20610 ‘auoydaya |
diysisupey
Buiusea jenuan) bio"Alewnduspom@saunbus
(€102°70°10) [Few3dnols) ATetil JUSPOAA rew3 HT0 OLAM
Awapeoy uojdweydanjopn
UouIaA H SIN :JayoeajpesH peoy pienbuudg
661L6EL INYN looyog Aleuwiid USPYAR
L1E¥SS 20610 o
:A1asinN suoyde|s ()
sse|D 1 68SS 20610 :auoyde|s] 2
Arasinp “jou dNg ¥1/AA
}N"03°|10oyISATELdUOSUD IM@UOqqIBD spue|pIly 1S9
|[ooyag YN"ACE UCIAUBISA|OMED) 00U DSATELLIIGUOSUDIA lewy uojs|ig
Aunwwon Aojpeig
uoqqio r O sIN -lsyoeajpea PeOY I3)jepn
GZEFOL ‘NYN looyag Aewid UOSUB|IAA
0¥Z8S6G 20610 Xe
ssen
Masiny ‘jou| 8€¢8SG 20610 auoydsja |
|o0yos [ooyosAiewnidyiedisam ‘rewg gy LAM
Aunuwiwon uoyduwieydanjonn
sauor g si\ :layoeajpea peoy UoAa(qg
€GLLEL NN looyag Alewld yed 1sepn
uoneuLIOU|
Jayung JORJUOD sjooyaog Arewnud

210z une] Buudsg - syuswysiiqels3 [euoneanpy Jo 3si

|12unoy ucidweysarjops Jo Aun oyl




8¥G8GS 20610 Xe4
sse|D
Kiasiny “jou PS8SS 20610 ‘auoydsia|
X8 9/AM
|[ooyog |00YDSAIELIIdBUIOY; POOM ‘jrew3 uojdweyJanjopa
Alunwwon lleyusyie)
Ao rap Jayoeajpesy Yinog peoy| auIoyIposn
¥SEROL ‘NYN looyag Alewid auioyjpoogs
sse|D) m.ra
Aasiny "y 0¥685S 20610 :auoydaja |
OAL LIAM
|[ooyos N"AOB UO}dUWIE{ISA[OM@D)| 00D S/ATEIIAPUSPOOM ‘lews uojdweyianjopn
Aunwwon pIalsaupapn
Jamolg q sin :1ayosejpeay peoy pug poops
C¢Cey0l ‘N¥N looyag Arewld pu3g poopp
L SE9GG 20610 Xeq
sse|n
Assiny “ou 0G€95G 20610 auoydaja )
Mdl LIAM
[ooyos 10" PISlJSUSPOMD)ID1}}0 ‘liew3g uojdweylanjopp
Alunwwon plalsaupapa
19)|epA S S :JayoesjpeaH aNuUaAy USPOAA
GPEPOL “NYN |ooyog Alewild playsuspop
uoljeuLoU|
Jayung JoRjU0N sjooyss Aiewpig

L10Z w9 Buudg - sjuswiysijqe)sy jeuoneanpg Jo Isi
112uno uoydwieyaaiopm Jo Auo sy L




Isni] diysiauped

Bulwea enuan L 9£9GS 20610 -XE4
(Lloz'2Z1'L0) 08€9GS 20610 ‘auoyds|a | adi LIAM
Aweapeoy Jouyedyieay@orul ‘lewg uojdweyianopn
Aemo|loH o sI :1ayoeajpesH peoy poomisald
0€LLEL ‘NUN SAlNSaX3H 3ed yiesH
10G98GS 20610 Xed
00S8SS Z0610 -auoydsja]
30¢ L IAM
[ooyog llewg uojdweLssajopn
Aunwwon pislysaupaps
12yY23914 r si iayoes)peaH peoy auoc}sa|oo]
0601 INYN [o0Yyos spy Buluioysad aoiddo)
L Z¥8SS 20610 Xed N
o
021856 20610 rauoydaja] 0as ¥
uojdwey.an
[ooyog |00YOISS]jI4u0)|00 Jlewy Med uloyip|G
Alunuwo)n peoy Awalap
0J3)0 V IN Jayoeajpesy (Qd 10} eIy 301IN0OSTY pue)
G6EP0L ‘NUN [ooyosg Alunwiwo) s|jiH uo}jon)
69895G 20610 xXe4
11 8AM
1sniL Awspeoy 898965 20610 :auoydals | uoydweyssalopn
1shjswy flespod
(€102°10°L0) M AOD UOJALUEISA|OM Jlewg sueT jsinyuieg
Awaspeoy (ebenbue
sineq N SIN ‘ledidung 2 Yooadg 1o} ealy a0Inosay
8C1L6EL ‘NHN pue) jooyss ybiH Aejsiaply
uopeuou|
Jayung JoBuOD sjooyog Alepuoasg

110z uus Bupidg - sjuswysiiqe)ss [euopeonpg Jo isi
119uno?) uojdweysaAlop Jo ANg ay L




(1sn1) Awepeoy

uojdweyIanop LLLEZO 20610 ‘auoydsja L S8 0LAM
jo Auo) uojdweyianopn
(010Z'860°1L0) )IN°BIO"ALUSpeIEMa U)oLl jrewy sasnoypio
Awapeay aueT ysiep
Led d 1 ‘lediouild Awspeoy
Z819€1 ‘NYN uojdweyIaA0pA JSBT YUON
€0196¥ 206L0 Xed
LOBESS 20610 :ouoydeja]
Isnu] diysisuned
Bujuwiear jenuan BioIEdASesoW@ojul ‘lewg N19 FLAM
(210Z'90°1L0) SPUE|PIW JSSAA
Awspeoy Aemo|[oH © s1 :1ayoea)pesy uojsjg
T GBEY e | peoy puejo
8608CL ‘NuN Yied Asjes
90€£8SS C0610 Xed %J
0L€8SS 20610 :auoydsja] m.a
)sni] Awapeoy (looyog Aunwiwion
1sAyjowy biojooydsuocjarowi@saninbua iewq uojJoly Je umouy Ajsnoiaaid)
(210Z'¢0°10) Ag8 0LAM
Awapeosy siAeQ N SIWN | :Jedidund anjnoaxg uojdweydsn|opa
ssiiieg N SIN :|ooyos Jo peaH aue sbuje4 pio
8.Z¥FL ‘NN looyog ucjaloly
L€686S 20610 xed
LVIN 0€99GS ¢0610 :auoydale |
|ooyos spiayybiH INY PAM
(s10Z'Z1°10) 3N’ 03" AMSy@DSauinbue ‘lewg uojdwieyianjopn
Awapeoy uusd
aje] oI\ layoeapeay Kepp Adepunog
Z1E€2PL ‘NN Jjooyag speuybiy
uoneuLou|
Jayung joRIUCYH sjooyoag Aiepuoseg

4107 uue] Buudg - sjuswysijqe)s3 jeuo)ieanpg o is|q
1Punc) uojdwetaa|op Jo A0 ay ]




£198GS 20610 xXed
Isni} Awapeoy
uojdweysAiop L61€6¥ 20610 rauoydsje |, N0 ¥LAM
j0 Ao SPUB|PIA 1S9
(600Z°60°L0) %¥N"BI0 AWISPESBGMS@)SoUINDUS ‘rew3 uols|ig
Awapeoy Joang Asjpng
Jaxosu| Y SIN ‘ledidun4 Awapeay uojs|ig
£865C1 ‘NiN pue uojdweylsaopn Yyinog
9€09 468 1280 Xe
¥shag
Awapesy pinp 00S6€S 20610 :auoydsja] NHS EAM
[efua) uojjeonpg uoldwieylaAlops
(¥102°20°10) Y WEES)ENY ‘Irews3 yoloepse)d
Awopeoy JU29s219) [IPUIAA
ueBiop r N JN ‘ledipuug (IA 10} eRIY
98G0¥ | :NHN 80/N0S3Yy pue) [00Y2S MOISBWS
<t
Awspeay o
puejbug 966849G ¢0610 Xed Q
Jo yainyn A.nau
|ooyag sjerfa)on 0098SS 20610 :auoydsjal NAas £/\
$19)9d 'S uolduwreysanjopp
(zLoZz'0L"10) ¥n'Bio sisedsw)siolods ‘lew3 1SOAA peoy uoldwon
Awapeoy yed uoydwon
sima] g ‘ledioud | Awspeoy puejbu3 jo yoinyo v
€G88¢1 ‘NUn looyog sjeifis|jo) sJ9)ed 'S
Auedwon LGC8SGG 20610 xe4
Awspeoy
Ny dljoyied 052855 20610 rauoydala |
IIXX uyop adod 198 0LAM
(5L0Z°€0°10) }n°bio’jiewds|o@ oyl jlew3 uojdeyaA|opn
Awapeoy auen sbuijeq p|o
SlII3 T H L ssIN ‘ledioupd Awspeoy
c08l¥l ‘NHN dlloyied pey) g pue Apeq ino
uoijeuLION|
J3yun4 J9RIUOD sjooyog Aiepuooeg

210z wue) Bupdg - sjuswiysigelsy euoneanpg jo 3siq
[19uno) uojdweysaA|ops Jo Ao ay )




930 SAM

Buipseoq pue Keq Xe4 uojdweysanjopn
p8-00) ‘G- 0€CLYE 20610 :auoydata] uuad
|00y 8. NN"U3S UO)AUIE]ISA|OM [EAOIZIOTUl lewsy PEOY Uuad

uojdweydanjopn
LOLEVL ‘NYN poomAsH W I ‘ledioulg jooyog [ekoy 8y
. OX8 9AM
FE€€8GS 20610 Xe4 uojdweyIsnop
EEEBSS Z06LO ‘auoydaja | lleyuapa)
paply Asepunjop ¥ 03" UOJALUBISA|OMSBUN D) UILIPE lewq umom_omﬁ_vmwm
IPSLEL 'NYHN molpnT I -13yoesjpesH pue|bu3 jo yainys s,Bupy ay
Lo
$5985S 20610 :suoydaya VO PAG
|o0yog 98l W03 100UDSISUSHUGO YT O] JIew uojdwey.anjom
[00UDSIISUSHIGOUTDION] rews 1523 peoy Uodoon
080Z¥L :NYN eybueg r siy ‘ediduid |00YDS YMIS yshug @
jooyog 00#9SS 20610 suoydsja ] HEZ LAM
Aunwwog 0D SEIUJEW-S@SaNinbus Jrews UOJdWELISAIOAN
peoy sueaq
L8E¥01 NN Séquood g I HayoesjpesH looyog seiypen 1s
Auedwoq
Awapeoy
N oloyied .
HiEas doue 688955 20610 xe -
(€10Z°L0°10) 888865 Z0610 auoydaje uo}dWeyISAIOM
Awspeoy BI0 SPUNWPSIS)SaNINDUD [lew 1S3 peoy uojdwio)
}ed uojdwon
1686E1 ‘NYN saybnH W sIN ledidulld | Kwepesy aljoyye) s,punwpd Ig
uoneuLIoju|
Jayunyg JorJuO) sjooyog Asepuoseg

£10Z Wiz Bupdg — sjuswysijqelsy [euonesnpg Jo s
[1ounog) uojdweysasjop jo Ao ayl




9161L8SG 20610 Xeq

[ooyag ybiy suID G1LGLGS 20610 auoydala
uojdwersanjopn AH0 9AM
(¥1L0Z'#0°L0) yn'biosybm@sauinbus rewy uojdweylanjopp
Awapeoy peoy __m_._coz@.
BunoA 1 sipy “Jayoea)peay |o0ysS
86401 ‘NYN ybiH ,si19 uoldweysanjopn
@)
0812.8 20610 -auoydsjs | uro o:%,
uojdweltanjopn
3N 03 0JNOWME@O}UI lew3 193118 abpuquen
sndwe) A1amaig pjeybundg
Pleuopoely | JN ‘lediould a1n
09L0FL ‘N¥N uolonsuod spue|pipy Isapn

0028SS 20610 xXed

Jsnag
Awspesy mnpy 222856 20610 :auoydals ] S3E L LAM
[enuad ucyeonpg uojdweyanjopp
(51L0Z°40°L0) JN"AoD UoldWeyJasjom@ybiypialssupam rewy PlSysaupapn
Awapeoy peoy pRyYyaI
HaqI© 2 SIN JJayoea)peaH Awoepeay Buysasuibug
Gl 'NdN Jsieroadg yBiH playssupapa
uoneuwloU|

Jayungy 12vju0n sjooyag Aiepuosag

2102 w19 fuudg - sjuswysijqe)s3 [euopieanps jo Isi
119unog uojdweyaAjops Jo A0 sy




L¥98GS 20610 'XB4
098SS 20610 :auoydala
IN¥ #¥AM
|jooysg Wod Spjapuuad@aoijo ‘llew3g uoldieysan|opn
Aunwwo S3U0)SIBAA
Aojue)s g ssIy -Jayoea)pesH Kepp Aepunog
Zlv0l ‘NYN [00Yog [eroadg spjal{ uuad
GOG1GS 20610 xed
9S1LGS 20610 auoydaja| an0 9AM
uojdweyaajopn
(9102°1L0°10) JIN"Aob uojduieyIsAjom@ped MaN ‘llewg SUapIes) JaWoIn

Awspeoy sndwe?) yled As|jep
9SNOYSYYAA 1 SIW -layoeajpea Bunoy EoﬁEmEmz@
0980ZF1 -NYN Jo AuQ) jooyog asnoy ulaypap |
LEVISS 20610 Xe nnau
0Et9GG 20610 10 62¥95S 20610 :auoydsja | -
H39 vIAM
|jooyos )N Aoh uojduwieyoajom@)ooyosyiedusaal Jrewy SPUE|PIA 1SapA
Alunwwon uojsiig
Aaumeq 0 1 sIp :1ayoeapea} SNUaAY led uaslg)
SL¥POL “NYN [00YDg Yled usaig
L¢¢8GS 20610 ‘Xeq
isnd)_diysisuped 0€e8SS 20610 -auoydsa.
Buiuies jenuan
(91022110 }N°03’MPNOojJo@MOpESWPEO.q ‘rews P LAM
Awspeoy uojdweyanjops
uojbuLLeps 0 M SSIN :1ayses)peay peoy aumopsue]
L0l NYN |ooyos |eioadg mopesuwipeoig
uojeuLIo|
Jayuny Jarjuocn sjooyag [eivadg

210z uue] buudg - sjuswiysijqes3 jeuonesnpg Jo is|
l1ounog uocjdweytsajop Jo Ao 9y




G82TSS 20610 auoydaja
dN¥ ZAM
Jn'Bio ojAm@sauinbua lewg uojdweyanopp
Joa)g s1al|IA Jaddn
ljoupuy H siy :Jayoeajpeay (21AM) 233ua) Bulules )
£Clebl ‘NYN [euonjedop uojduweysanopn
ZPegas 20610 Xed
Isniy diysiaupey 06€8SS 20610 suoydsyja |
Buiurea jenuan ZN8 OLAM
(L0221 10) ‘lewg uojdLBLISAION
Awspeay liyspun
umo.ig v s -1syoea)pes SNusAy saloeuayg
£8EZFL ‘NYN 100Y2S HOIIISIN
02695G 20610 Xed %J
61599GS 20610 auoydsja | m.ra
4X8 9AM
jooyog lewg uojdweysanjops
Ajunwwo) lleyuapa |
UA||Iama[] S SN :Jayoes)peay peocy siboy
FLyrOL ‘NYN |00YOS POOAA [Jleyuapna |
122895 20610 Xe4
GGE8SS 20610 :auoydeja]
dHS FAM
|ooyog ‘lewy uojdweysaajopn
Aunwwon uusd
Aleq g I -layoeajpeal peoy abeieap
LI¥P0L -NYN jooyog ||eH uuad
uojeuLIOU|
Joyung JoRUOD sjooyag Jevadg

210z uue) Sundg - sjuswysijqe)sy [euoesnpy o 3siq
[1ouno uoldweysanjop Jo Ao ey




¥18GG 20610

:auoydsje]

}N°"AOD UC)dWEISA|OM@D)2.JUS0 JOOIGAEIY

ews

HS9 PAM
uojdweytsajopn
spiRipled

ShUBAY poomsume]

POOAA [ SIN -1syoes)peaH aAphoaxg sndwe) poomsume]
piojheld S IN -1ayoes)pes {N¥d ¢ ob
L52rEL ‘NdN Aay)) anuan yooighelg mm%.
6¥186S 20610 :auoydsya) m.ra
1sni] Awspeosy
9SNOH WIAYUON 3N Bl6 esnojuisyuou@nid-ao1o VN0 9AM
(910Z'50°1L0) 3N ACE UCIdUIEYISA[OMEDIaIUSa U0} Sbun| ‘lrews uojdweylaAjopn
Awspeoy suapies) JIswoi)
a9ld V¥ IN Jayoeajpesy sndwe) yled Asjlep
0SLEYL ‘NYN {N¥d) [o0ydog asnoy ulsyoN
G691GS 20610 :auoydela ] 4S9 FAM
uojdweyaniopn
AN°AOD uoldLUBISA|OMD)|O0YIS JUIOdPIN ‘llew3 splaiped
BNUBAY POOMSUMET]
POOAA " SIWN -JayoeajpesH aanoaxg sndweo) poomsume]
ueybejied Y JN -1syoses)peay (NYd v ebelg Aay)
9GZrEL ‘NHN anuao iodpiy
uoljeuLIOJU|
Jaypng JOBJUOD s)ufn |essjay fidng

10z uua) Buuds — sjuswysijqels3 jeuopeanpg Jo 3s
[12uno) uojdweysaa|opp jo Ao ay |




Page 100

L¥BGSS 20610 :auoydsja | ¥S9 FAM

uojduweysanjopn

YN"ACDL UCidWEYISA| OMD)BIIUDI PIeYDIO ‘[rewg spleled

SNUAAY POOMSUMET]

POOAA I SIN -layoes)peaH aAlnoexy sndwe) poomsume-|

uosjepn 7 sy -anuag sjebunybin jo pesy (NYd jendsoH

aelg r s ‘aua) pleyalQ Jo peasH Q 9WOoH) anuan sebunybiN

882101 :NYN UL pue ajua) pJeyalo syl
uojjeuioju]

Jayng JoBjuOD sjiun |eusyey jidng

4102 w3 Buudg - sjuswysi|qels3 jeuopeanps jo jsi
|19unon uoidweysaa|op Jo A ayg




wowvernameron PUBLIC SPACES
o PROTECTION ORDER

(section 59 Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and
Policing Act 2014)

- DOG CONTROL -

Made by Cabinet 19 July 2017
Entering into force: 1 October 2017

AREAS AFFECTED: ALL OF THE CITY OF WOLVERHAMPTON COUNCIL AREA

ANNEXE C

Page 101



Traditional Play
Site Name

All Saints O/S Play Area
Bantock Park Play Area
Batmans Hill P/G Play Area
Bee Lane P/F Play Area
Belgrade Road O/S
Bradmore Rec Play Area
Bushbury Rec Play Area
Castlecroft Avenue P/G Play Area
Claregate P/F Play Area
Coronation Park Play Area
D'eyncourt School Play Area
Dixon Street Play Area
Dukes Park

East Park Play Area

Address

Maxwell Street All Saints Wolverhampton
Finchfield Road Finchfieid Wolverhampton
Batmans Hill Road Bradley Bilston Wolverhampton
Bee Lane Fordhouses Wolverhampton

Belgrade Road Oxley Wolverhampton

Church Road Bradmore Wolverhampton

Bushbury Lane Low Hill Wolverhampton
Castlecroft Avenue Wightwick Wolverhampton
Knights Avenue Aldersley Wolverhampton
Wilkinson Avenue/Lord Street

School Mullett Road Wolverhampton West Midlands
Dixon Street, Wolverhampton

Constantine Way

Hickman Avenue Eastfield Wolverhampton

Eastfield Park Play Area (Brickheath Road O off Brickheath Road Eastfield

Finchfield Library P/A Play Area
Fowlers Park Play Area

Graiseley Recreation Ground Play Area
Greenway Playing Field Play Area
Heath Town Park Play Area

Hickman Park Play Area

Hickman Park Toddlers Play Area

Hill Avenue P/G Play Area

Howland Close O/S Play Area
Jeremiah Road O/S Play Area
Leicester Square OfS Play Area

Long Knowle O/S Play Area

Lunt Play Area

Martham Drive P/G Play Area
Merridale Street O/S Play Area
Milifields P/A (The Villages) Play Area
Muchall Park Piay Area

Northwood Park Play Area

Patshull Avenue P/F Play Area
Peace Green Q/S Play Area
Pendeford Square Play Area

Penk Rise QS Play Area

Phoenix Park Play Area

Renton Road O/S Piay Area

Showell Park

Taylors Play Area
Warstones/Kingsclear Walk Play Area

White Oak Drive Wolverhampton West Midlands
Nine Elms Lane Heath Town Wolverhampton
Pool Street Blakenhall Wolverhampton

Bankfield Road, Bilston

Heath Town Park Church Street Wolverhampton
Wolverhampton Street Bilston Wolverhampton
Wolverhampton Street Bilston Wolverhampton

Postcode

WV2 2AF
WV3 aLQ
WV14 8TZ
WV10 6LE
WV10 6SX
WV3 7EN
WV3 7EN
WV3 8JN
WV6 9PR
WV14 8PS
WV11 1DD
WV2 2AY
WV14 8GX
WV1 2BT
WV12RZ
WV3 BAF
WV10 BAW
WV2 ANE
WV14 CLH
WV10 OLU
WV14 0LZ
WV14 0LZ

Corner Birmingham New Rd and Hill Avenue Lanesfield Wolverhamptor WV4 6PY

Howland Close Wolverhampton West Midlands
Jeremiah Road, Heath Town, Wolverhampton
Leicester Street Whitmore Reans Wolverhampton
Blackwood Ave Wednesfield Wolverhampton
Lunt Road, Bilston

Martham Drive Compton Wolverhampton
Russell Street Merridale Wolverhampton
Rushbury Close, Ettingshall

Manor Road Penn Wolverhampton

Northwood Park Road Bushbury Wolverhampton
Patshull Avenue Oxley Wolverhampton

off Francis Street Whitmore Reans

Off Whitburn Close Pendeford Wolverhampton
Penk Rise Tettenhall Wood Wolverhampton
Dudley Road Blakenhall Wolverhampton

Renton Road Oxley Wolverhampton
Humpheries Road,Bushbury

Burtorr Road, Springfield, Woiverhampton
Warstones Drive Merry Hill Wolverhampton

Wednesfield Park/King George V PF Play ArDuke Street Wednesfield Wolverhampton

West Park Play Area
Windsor Avenue P/F Play Area
Woodcross Lane O/fS Play Area

Park Road West Whitmore Reans Woiverhampton
Linton Avenue Penn Wolverhampton
Woodcross Lane Lanesfield Bilston

Page 102

WWV9 5PY
WV10 0AJ
WV6 OPR
WV11 1ED
WV14 7AQ
WVE AL
WV3 OPF
Wv14 0UH
WV4 5PX
WV10 8ET
WV10 6RG
WV1 4RN
WV9 5NH
WV6 8J2
WV2 3JU
WV10 6XN
WVT0 ONA
WV10 0EG
WV4 4PA
WVv11 1TH
WV1 4PJ
WV4 4DR
WV14 9BW



TENNIS COURTS

EAST PARK, Hickman Avenue, Eastfield, Wolverhampton, WV1 2BT

« BRADMORE RECREATICN GROUND, Church Road, Bradmore,
Wolverhampton, WV6 9PR

» CLAREGATE PLAYING FIELDS, Knights Avenue, Aldersley, Wolverhampton,
WV6 9PR

* WEST PARK, Park Road West, Whitmore Reans, Wolverhampton, WV1 4PJ.

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank



Scrutiny Work Programme Agenda Item No:

Scrutiny Board

09.01.2018 | ¢ Post 16 Update (Alex Jones, Angela McKeever, Tony O'Callaghan
06.03.2018 | ¢ Feedback from the Fire Safety Scoping Group
e Select Committee Select Committee Report on Local Government
Scrutiny Briefing Note
e Scrutiny Review of the City's Apprenticeships Offer — six month
update
05.06.2018
03.07.2018
11.09.2018 | Scrutiny Review of the City's Apprenticeships Offer — 12 month update
09.10.2018
11.12.2018
08.01.2019 | Digital Transformaiton Programme Update - tbc
12.03.2019
09.04.2019

Other potential items (when something significant needs a panel recommendation):

1. Cyber Security
2. Recommendations from Succession Planning Scrutiny Review

Scrutiny Reviews
1. Budget Task and Finish Group for the Combined Authority Scrutiny Committee
2. Scoping Group to consider fire safety
3. Transport- what could transport in the city look like in 20 years time?
4. Possible Councillor engagement (See M.Sargeant Tettenhall Governance Review

Report)

Page 105




Confident, Capable Council Scrutiny Panel Work Programme

14.02.2018 Use of the Building (by external organisations and partners) and
Corporate Landlord — inc Trade Unions.
Budget Consultation — how can we get better public engagement
into the Council’s budget consultation and decision making?

18.04.2018 Agile working (including different levels of staffing and types of job)
Review of the Rules of Debate and the Constitution

13.06.2018

26.09.2018

28.11.2018

06.02.2019

10.04.2019

Other potential items (when something significant needs a panel recommendation):

Page 106




Stronger City Economy Scrutiny Panel Work Programme

13.02.2018

Tettenhall District Centre — What should the Council’s role be in
Tettenhall that would better benefit local businesses and residents

City Centre BID (Business Improvement District) or equivalent
and how do we now manage the way we sell the City centre of
Wolverhampton?

17.04.2018

Innovation - how can we work with the University and other key
players to encourage innovation across the city? It was agreed the
focus of the item would be on the work of the University, the Growth
Hub and how as a Council innovation is being addressed, including
how the Council collaborates with partners. The report would cover
areas such as the Knowledge Economy, Digital Agenda and Smart
City. Other areas suggested to explore within the report included —
Springfield Brewery and the Prototype Centre. The Service Director
— City Economy agreed to work with Isobel Woods on the report.

Evaluation of the outcomes from Inward Investment and Tourism
activities commissioned through the West Midlands Growth
Company and BOP (Burns Owen Partnership) Sound diplomacy
(incudes Civic Hall)

Strategic Economic Plan — look at draft of the plan before Cabinet
and formal consultation.

26.06.2018

Footfall

18.09.2018

20.11.2018

12.02.2019

02.04.2019

Other Potential items (when something significant needs a panel recommendation):

—

. The potential effects of Brexit on the local economy

2. Policy implications from West Midlands Combined Authority/Regional/National or
International Sources

> w

How do we monitor our communications?
Skills and Employment

Page 107




Vibrant and Sustainable City Scrutiny Panel Work Programme

01.03.2018 | ¢ Enforcement including Dog Control - looking at enforcement policy
across a number of services to explore possible new models and the
balance between enforcement and education

e Parking Outside Schools

e Future Work Plan Suggestions

26.04.2018 | « Air Quality/Transport — Public Health to contribute — looking at ways
to improve air quality in hot spots around the city which could include
work for the Transport Review Group (John Roseblade)

Private Sector Housing Update

12.07.2018 | ¢ The Work of Contractor Kingdom (Provisional — To Be Confirmed)

Waste Management (Provisional — To Be Confirmed)

04.10.2018

06.12.2018

28.02.2019

11.04.2019

Page 108



Health Scrutiny Panel

25.01.2018 CAMHS Transformation Plan Refresh 2017-20
Oral Health - Adult and Children
Public Health Outcomes Framework

Patient Mortality Rates

29.03.2018 | ¢ Update on the work of the suicide prevention stakeholder forum

¢ Urgent and emergency care and 7 day hospital services

¢ Joint update report on effectiveness of actions taken by WCCG, CWC
and RWHT to support local systems to prepare for and deliver resilient
performance through winter 2017/18.

¢ The Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust - Quality Accounts 2017/18

24.05.2018 | ¢ Elizabeth Learoyd,Chief Officer,Healthwatch Wolverhampton Annual
Report 2017/18

19.07.2018

20.09.2018

15.11.2018 | ¢ Margaret Courts,Children’s Commissioning Manager, WCCG;,to
present update report on refreshed CAMHS Local Transformation Plan
to meeting on 15.11.18

24.01.2019

21.03.2019

Long list of topics 2018/19 - dates for presentation and method of scrutiny to be
agreed

The Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust — Primary Care Vertical Integration

The Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust - Quality Accounts 2017/18

West Midlands Ambulance Service - Quality Accounts 2017/18

CAMHS — Emma Bennett to lead and Stephen Marshall (CCG)

Walsall CCG - Reconfiguration of hyper acute and acute stroke services
Healthwatch Work Programme Planning Document 1 April 2017- 31 March 2018

oOE N =

e Urgent and emergency care

e Dementia

e Access to healthcare for the deaf community
e Transfer of services

e CAMHS
e Youth Healthwatch
e Oral health

7. A briefing note for the panel on how The Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust reviews
‘never events’ to be presented

Page 109


http://www.royalwolverhampton.nhs.uk/about-us/primary-care/
http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s53905/Walsall%20Stroke%20Services%20Business%20Case%20for%20Public%20Consultation.pdf

Adults and Safer City Scrutiny Panel 2017/18

06.02.2018 | ¢ Reducing Reoffending Strategy- To comment on the draft Reducing

Reoffending Strategy for the city developed in response to
significant national policy and organisational change
¢ Organised Crime — briefing paper

10.04.2018 | ¢ Community Safety Strategy Update

12.06.2018

25.09.2018

27.11.2018

29.01.2019

26.03.2019

Long list of topics 2017/18 - dates for presentation and method of scrutiny to be
agreed

1.

2.
3.

o~

Quality of Care — issues of quality assurance - Sarah Smith, Head of
Commissioning

Adult Education

With reference to the resolution to Minute No. 5 (Update on the Dementia City)
-13.6.17

Draft People Directorate Commissioning Strategy — 13.6.17

Responding to Serious and Organised Crime - To provide an outline of
partnership proposals to address serious and organised crime in the city and
the Council’s contribution. (Karen Samuels — CWC Community Safety/Chief
Inspector Karen Geddes — West Midlands Police/Andy Moran — CWC
Procurement)

Modern Slavery — update report on progress May 2018 ( Modern Slavery
Report 19.9.17)

Briefing notes for distribution via the Document Library:

1.

2.

Fatal Contraband and Alcohol - Update requested from meeting in July 2016 —
Sue Smith agreed to lead

Crime Reduction and Community Safety and Drugs Strategy Update — request
from meeting held in July 2017 — Karen Samuels and David Watts

Supporting a Safe and Seamless Transfer from Specialist Care or Hospital
Setting — Update to be provided following meeting on 31 January 2017 (David
Watts).

Better Care Fund — Update requested at meeting held on 31 January 2017.

Page 110



5. Dementia City — Update on how GP services could be improved, any identified
strengths and weaknesses and if possible data on which GPs were reporting
incidents — lead Kathy Roper

Children, Young People and Families Scrutiny Panel 2017/18

07.02.2018 | ¢ Improving Standards at Key Stage 4

e Update on Early Intervention and Prevention model

¢ Review of Children and Young People Improvement The Way —
review of progress

11.04.2018 | ¢ The impact of the HEADSTART programme

¢ Update on implementation of the Early Years Strategy/including the
standard of childcare provision

20.06.2018
05.09.2018
14.11.2018
16.01.2019
27.03.2019
Long list of topics 2017/18 - dates for presentation and method of scrutiny to be
agreed
1. Supporting Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children — pre-suggested item
2. Mental Health Issues/CAMHS (Emma Bennett/CCG) — pre-suggested item
3. Youth homelessness — pre-suggested item
4. Update on Youth Offending Team Inspection Action Plan - panel agreed to

receive the information about the findings and recommendations of the
doctorate research as a briefing paper rather than a report when published.

Updated 14.02.18

Page 111



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Parking Outside Schools Scrutiny Review
	Parking outside schools Appendix
	11 Parking Outside Schools Scrutiny Review


	6 Dog Control in Wolverhampton
	Black Country enforcement policy 2016
	Black Country service standards 2016
	Final Dog Control PSPO and Appendices

	7 Future Work Plan

